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Rs. 2 Billion achieved, thanks to the efforts of our teams,
the trust of our customers, the support of our partners,
and the prayers of our well-wishers. But the next milestone
awaits - and we're just getting started.

continued...




2024 Highlights:

A Year of Remarkable
Growth and Milestones
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An lllustration of an
ever Growing Footprints

With a strong presence across Pakistan through our branch network, we
are able to tap into both urban and rural markets by expanding our reach.

1. Karachi 24. Wah Cantt 42 Bhimber-Mirpur-AJK
2. Lahore 25. Kotli AJK 43. Okara
3. Islamabad 26. Swat 44. Gilgit
4. Multan 27. Malakwal 45 Gujrat
5. Faisalabad 28. Sambarial 46. Abbottabad
6. Peshawar 29 Chakwal 47 Khairpur
7. Sukkur 30, Bhalwal 48. DG Khan
8. Hyderabad 31. Talagang 1
9. Sialkat 32. Bahawalpur K
10. Sargodha 33 Toba Tek Singh
1. Cuetta 34. Hassan Abdal
12, Rahimyar Khan 35. Jhang
13. Vehari 36, Zafarwal
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Our Group -
Army Welfare Trust
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Army Welfare Trust (AWT) is one of the leading conglomerates in
Pakistan with a diverse business spectrum spread all over Pakistan.

Formed in 1971

54 Years of dedication to the nation

Providing more than 28,000 employments

Above 40 billion worth Company

18 Companies/ Business Units

Rs. 2 billion contributed to national exchequer

Presence in all major sectors including Insurance, Aviation, CNG, Agriculture,
Manufacturing, Sugar, Lubricants, Real Estate, Security Solutions and
Information Technology and many other diverse fields.
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Askari Life Assurance Co. Ltd, is part of one of the leading conglomerates in Pakistan, Army
Welfare Trust (AWT). Our insurance solutions range from savings and family protection products to
unit link plans and customized health and life coverages. We develop products and processes to
enhance opportunities and mitigate the risk of threats to the overall financial and business
abjectives of our individual and corporate clients.

As a company we rely on innovation to be a key driver for future growth which allows for more
customized solutions, digitization and swift product development.

A Legacy of Distinction
Askari Life Assurance Co. Ltd. comes from a legacy of distinction and integrity. The parent group
(AWT), was formed in 1971 and comprises of a diversified business portfolio renowned in all major
sectors of Pakistan including General Insurance, Aviation, Agriculture, Manufacturing, Sugar,
Lubricants, Real Estate, Security Solutions and Information Technology.

Askari General Insurance Company Limited (AGICO), under the umbrella of AWT, has been operat-
ing since 1995 with a prominent standing in Pakistan's Insurance industry.

Askari Life Assurance Co. Ltd is a Public Limited Company with shares traded in Pakistan Stock
Exchange (PSX).

Askari Life also offers Assorted Product Portfolio like Universal Life Investment Plans, Group Life
Insurance, Variety of term Life products providing customized options

Askari Life has a team of highly trained professionals, dedicated to offering a client focused policy
management system, through swift claim processing and settlement with a strong financial
backing. Askari Life is at the forefront in providing the ultimate insurance experience by adding
value to the lives of its customers.

We have designed a service strategy that is highly responsive and personalized to provide com-
plete peace of mind to our clients.

Askari Life has sophisticated Channels of Distribution like Agency Network, Bancassurance
(including Askari Bank, Silk Bank, Al Baraka Bank and Samba Bank), Corporate Sales and diverse
Distribution partners like TCS, Bogo Discount App, MediQ Smart healthcare.

Askari Life offers a wide range of insurance solutions. Askari Life is the first Life insurance compa-
ny to start both Conventional and Takaful solutions in st year of its operations.

Product & Services offered:

Individual Life Insurance - Saving Plans
Individual Life Insurance - Term Life Plans
Family Takaful - Saving Plans
Group Life Insurance/Group Family Takaful
Bansassurance/ Bancatakaful



OUR VISION

To be a trusted, globally acknowledged,
top rated Financial Solutions Providing Companuy.

OUR MISSION

To uplift the financial well-being of Policy Holders,
Customers, Advisors, Employees; and Sharehold-
er prafitability by continuously reinforcing deep
commitment to our core values.
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OUR VALUES

FINANCIAL ACUMEN
We believe in empowering our customers through need based
packaged financial solutions to cater specific needs with an
extensive distribution network.

CUSTOMER CARE
We believe in creating value for society by optimizing customer
experience through superior financial advisory that makes posi-
tive difference in our customer's life

ETHICAL CONDUCT
We believe in exhibiting and ensuring honesty and integrity at all
times by encouraging open communication, transparency and
humility.

SUSTAINABILITY
We believe in generating revenue from multiple channels to build
a strong asset base for long term sustainable income and growth
for the Trust,
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CODE OF
CONDUCT




The Askari Life's palicy is to conduct business with honesty and integrity and be
ethical in all its dealings, showing respect for the interest of those with whom it has
relationship.

The Askari life is committed to run its business in an environment that is sound and
sustainable. As a responsible corparate citizen, the company recognizes its social
responsibilities, and endeavors to contribute for betterment of society as a whole,

Askari Life is an equal opportunity employer. ts employee recruitment and promo-
tional policies are free of any gender bias, and is merit as well as excellence oriented.
It believes in providing its employees safe and healthy working conditions, and in
maintaining good channels of communications.

The Askari Life shall comply with all laws, and regulations with letter and in spirit
which are applicable on the company, All employess are expected to familiarize
themselves with laws and requlations governing their individual areas of responsibili-
tu, and not to transgress them. and in case employees become aware of the viola-
tion of any laws, it is the responsibility of the employee to report the matter to Head
of Compliance and CEQ.

Employees are required to comply with Anti-money laundering Laws and Company’s
Anti-Money Laundering [AML) Manual in arder to prevent the company being used
as a medium for money laundering activities and terrorism financing activities.
Maoreover, employees are also required to immediately notify the AML-Compliance
Officer in case they found any suspicion of the Money laundering activities while
dealing with the customers.

The Askari life does not support any political party nor contributes to the funds of
groups whose activities promote party interests.

The Askari life is committed to provide services, which consistently offer value in
terms of price and guality and satisfy customer needs and expectations.

The Askari life firmly believes and adheres to the principles of reliability and credibili-
ty in its financial reporting and in transparency of business transactions.

The Askari life expects its employees to abide by professional code of ethics where-
by company information and assets are not used for any personal advantage or
gain. Any conflict of interests should be avoided.

The Board ensures that the above principles are complied with, for which the Board
has constituted the Risk Management & Compliance Committee and Audit commit-
tee, to be supportive of compliance.
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The year 2024 was a remarkable chapter in Askari Life's journey of resilience, innovation,
and growth. Building on the strong foundation of previous years, we accelerated our
transformation efforts and achieved a significant milestone - crossing Rs. 2 billion in
new business. This achievement is a testament to the hard work of our people, the trust
of our policyholders, and the strength of our strategic vision.

Despite a dynamic economic landscape, Askari Life continued to grow its footprint by
expanding individual life and corporate business segments.

We also prioritized digital transformation and internal process optimization, ensuring
greater operational efficiency and customer responsiveness. Our distribution model
remained agile and cost-effective, enabling us to scale sustainably while remaining
focused on delivering value to our clients and partners.

Askari Life remains committed to delivering innovative insurance solutions across both
conventional and Takaful segments. Our dedicated team of professionals continues to
drive product innovation, forge strategic alliances, and build customer-centric experiences.
A key highlight of the year was the launch of the Muhafiz Family Takaful - Savings Plan,
an exclusive offering tailored for the brave servicemen and officers of the Pakistan
Armed Forces. This initiative reflects our deep commitment to financial inclusion and
developing need-based solutions.

As we look to the future, | am confident in our collective ability to adapt, evolve, and
lead. | would like to extend my heartfelt appreciation to our policyholders, distribution
partners, shareholders, and board members for their continued trust. | am especially '
proud of our team, whose passion and commitment to our values make Askari Life a of e lf

trusted name in the insurance industry. ! J'(

With the grace of Almighty, we step into the next phase of growth with optimism, Jehanzeb Zafar
purpose, and unwavering dedication to serving lives with care and integrity. CEO Askari Life

{13} Askari Life Assurance Co. Ltd.
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Jehanzeb Zafar
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Audit Committee
Tarig Hameed
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Investment Committee

Malik Riffat Mahmood
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Jehanzeb Zafar

Rehan Mobin

Muhammad Azmatullah Sharif

Muhammad Nadeem Rajput
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Member
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Ayesha Rafique

Rizwan Ullah Khan

Maj. Gen Karnran Al (Retd)
Jehanzeb Zatar

Wagas Waseem

Chairperson
Member
Member
Member
Secretary
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Management Team

REHAN MOBIN M. AZMATULLAH SHARIF
Chief Financial Officer Chief Operating Office

SYED ALI IMRAN KHURRAM S. AWAN
Distribution Services Agency Distribution Sales

KHALID NAZIR M. NADEEM RAJPUT
Corporate Sales Company Secretary

WAQAS WASEEM SOHAIL SIDDIQUI
HR and Administration Information Technology

ATIF SHAMIM SYED
Compliance
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Management Committees

Risk Management & Compliance Committee
Maj. Gen Kamran Ali [Retd) Chairman

Tarig Hameed Member
Jehanzeb Zafar Member

Rehan Mobin Member
Muhammad Azmatullah Sharif Member

Atif Shamirm Syed Mermnber & Secretary
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Saiduddin & Co.
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RSM Avais Hyder Liaguat Nauman-Chartered Accountants
{Chartered Accountants)

Registered Office
&th Hoor, Army Welfare Trust,
AWT Plaza. The Mall Rawalpindi.

Head Office

Emerald Tower, Officer Mo 1104,
11th Flaar, Plat G-19, Block 5, KDA
Improvernent Scheme No. 5
Clifton Karachi, Pakistan.
Phone: +92 21 36269941-44,
UAN: +32 (021) 111-225-275
Fax: +92 21 3514 7540

Website
www.askarilife.com

Email
info@askarilife.com

Share Registrar

THK Associates (Pvt) Limited
Plat No. 32-C, Jami Commecial
Street 2. DH.A Phase VI,
Karachi-75500

Oir +22 271111-000-322
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Bankers

Askari Bank Limited

Allied Bank Limited

Summit Bank Limited

MCE Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited

JS Bank Limited

Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited
Silk Bank Limited

Samba Bank Limnited
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

| am pleased to present the 32nd &nnual Report for the year ending December 37, 2024, to the Shareholders
of &gkar Life &ssurance Company Limited. This repart highlights the cverall performance of the Company and
demcnstrates that the Board of Directors of your Company has once again fulfilled their responsibilities with
dedication, successfully guiding the Company towards profitability, through a challenging socio-sconomic
landscape

THE ECONOMY

Pakistan's economy recorded a growth rate of2.5% in the fiscal year 2023-24, reflecting gradual recovery
under the IMF's Extended Fund Facility ([EFF). However, structural challenges including energy shortages, low
Tax-10-G0P ratios, and external debt servicing limited faster expansion.

Inflation has remained maoderate, although persistent food and energy prices continue to put pressure on
hicusenold budgets. Inflows from the IMF, World Bank, and bilateral partners have temporarily stabilized reserves,
however, the PKR remains under pressure due to external account imbalances.

High-interest rates improved yields an government securities and corpaorate bonds, supporting the investment
portfolio returns.

As an crganization, we proactively addressed these hurdles by pricritizing innovatien, refining customer-focused
solutions, and streamlining operational processes. Central to our strategy has been an unwavering dedication
o delivering exceptional financial security to cur policyholders, ensuring their trust and confidence remain our
guiding principles.

COMPANY'S FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
The Company's financial performance for the year 2024 was as follows:

* For the year 2024, the Company had net profit before tax of Re1840 milion as compared to net losses
of Re/158.64 million for the year 2023, a remarkable performance of the Company is noted.

* The gross premium stocd at Re.2 017671 million (including Takaful Contributions] as compared 1o Rs
1,613 54million for the same penod of 2023

* Marketing & Administration expenses stocd at Re.39168 milion [2023: Rs320.10milien).The increase is
mainly due to higher levels of business and inflation. Wnereas cther expenses stood at Re2879 million,
increase by Rs11.52 million from the previous year [2023: 1727 million).

* The Net Clam expenses were Rs.34578 millian, [2022: Rs 28143 million).

* The Company's investment portfalio stecod at Re2.703.89milion as at 371 December 2024 as compare o
Fg1E871.230 milon as at 371 December 2023,

While 2024 posed signficant economic and ratonal challenges, 4skan Life achieved measurable growth across
its cperations. Dur ongoing IT system modernization and distribution network expansion initiatives
remalnedprogressive reinforcing operational efficiency and market reach. Moving forvard, we will prioritze
prganic growth, erhancea renewal persistency through customer-centric strategies, and maintain rigoreus cost
discipline to ensure sustainable progress.

FUTURE PROSPECTS OF THE COMPANY

Pakistans econcmy shows signe of stabilzanon, supported by IMF assistance, declining inflation, and a recovering
stock market However, challenges such as fiscal daficits, debt servicing, and struetural reforms remain. Continued
afforts to manage external debts, attract nvestment and implement econcmic reforms will be crucial for
sustainable growth

Dur focus on customer-centroity has been strengthened through the integration of digital platforms and mobile
applications. making our senvices mose accessible and efficient. We continue to prioritize customer satsfacton
by offering perscnalized sclutions, efficient claim processing, and responsive customer sarvice.

{17} Askari Life Assurance Co. Ltd.




We are committed 1o leveraging technological advancements and maintaining our customer-first approach o
further expand our market share However, we must remain vigiant to the challanges posed by the macroeconamic
environment and reguiatony changes Cur stategic focus will continue to revolve around sustainable growth,
risk management, and enhancing operatonal efficiency We are confident that with the support of our stakeholders,
we will continue to build on our strong foundation and achieve greater success in the years ahead.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Dur loyal shareholders are also our great assets whose trust and confidence over the company palicesis also
a symbol of pride for us that will helps us to accomplish the vision in making the £sk«ari Life 4ssurance a top-
rated financial soluton providing company.

I'wiould like to extend my sincere thanks to the Board memberswhic are discharging the'r duties and responsibilities
in an efficient manner by utilizing their full expertise, devotion and tme.

My sincere appreciation shall alsc be extended to the officers, staff and sales force of the company who work
hard toward towards the development of the company

| am confidentin Askari Life's ability to overcome future challenges and create enduring value for all stakehclders:

May Almighty Aliah bless us all [Ameen).

|

L)

Lt. Gen. Nauman Mahmood [Retd.)
Chairman

Rawalpinai
March 20, 2025
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to present the Financial Staternents of Askari Life
Assurance Company Limited [the Company) along with the Auditcrs' Report for the year ended Cecember 37
2024 The external auditcrs of the Company have issued an un-gualified opinicn on the financial statements.

Principal Activity

The Campany is activell engaged in life insurance business, providing individual life insurance.group Iifewindow
takaful and accidentalinsurance to individuals and companies all over Pakistan,

Pakistan Economy

45 arasult of governmeant's efforts to revive the ecanomy while pursuing macroeconomic stabiization and
essartia structural reforms, the economy of cur Country is shiowing signe of recovery, however ascalation in
the orices of essential commodities remain a enallenge. The IMF Extended Fund Facility provides valusble
suppert te maintain the Current 2ceount Balance and stable exchange rate.

Achievement of Another Milestone

A per uur commitmant to delivering long-term value for our shareholders weare pleased to repart with great
pride that Askari Life Assurance has successfully achieved another significant milestone of
Rs 2 bilfan in premium income for the year 2024 This achisvemerit was particularly challenging, given the
uncertainties in the business environment and the inflatiorary pressures that have diminished the purchasing
power of the masses Nevertheless, this remarkable cutcome is a direct result of the unwavering colaboration,
cummitment, and diligent efforts of the entire Askari team. Their collective dedication has heen instrumentat
in cvereoming these hurdles and reaching this outstanding target.

Operational Review

Focus of our pperations is to empawer our customers through tailor made financial solutions to cater specific
reeds with an extensive distribution network. We believe in ereating value for all stakeholders by optimizing
customer experience through superior financial advisory that makes postive difference in our customer's life

The management of the Company is fully committed to the vision of providing services to the highest standards
to valued policy holders, sharehalders and other stake holders of the Company,

Gross Premium:

Curing the year the Gross Premium written was as follows:

Statutory Funds Gross Premium
2024 2023 Variance %

Rupees. in '000
First Year E23404 473773 32%
Second Yesr Renawsl 30787 302873 3%
Subsequent Year Renewal 348703 206355 59%
Single Premium 217,883 116886 BB
Individual Premium 1500763 1099887 36%
Group Policies without cash value 51BH49 513653 1%
Total 2017612 1,613,540 25%
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Significant growth in gross premium has been registered which stood at Rs 2 01761 millon (including Takafu!
Cantributions] as campared to corresponding pericd of 2023 which was Rs. 16813.54 millian.

The share of indridual business is 74% of the total gross premium, compared o B8% last year. The renewal
portfoio of the Company is also growing with stability Single premium and group life partfolio maintained
excentional growth momentum and increased by B8%, and 1% as comparad to last year,

Expenses

Curing The year 2024, marketing & administration expensesstond at Bs 39168 milion (2023 Rs 32071 million)
and other expenses were Rs. 2879milion compared to previous year (2023: 1727 millonjwith the increase
being mairly due to inflation and growth in business

Claims:

Curing the year 2024, net Claim expenses remained Rs.34578 million as compared to Rs. 28143 million for
the year 2023, This is mainly due to increase In volume of business.

Investment and other Income

The Investment and other income for the year 2024 is Rs 388.28million as compared to Rs 2868 82 million the
same period of 2023 The Company's investment portfolic has been managed effectively and efficiently which
resulted in overall nealtny rate of retum.

The Company's Investment portfelio currently stood at 2703.68millicn, as compared to the last year for
e ember, 2023 which was Rs 187130 milion, due to growth in business,

Company's Financial performance

We are excited to share with our valued shareholders that the Company has achieved yet ancther remarkable
milestone and after initisl Years of development process has achieved profitability in the year under review
For the year 2024, your Company has achieved ret profit [oefore ta«] of Bs, 1840 million, a turnaroend from
2 lngs of Rs 15864 millicn in 2023, This marks a monumenital leap in financial performance of your Company.
Earnings per share was Rs. 071, compared 1o a loss of Rs. [17] in 2023 The management remained optimistic
and committed to maintaining this upward trajectory, working trelessly to achieve even greater financial results
Inthe years to come:

Paid up Capital Requirement of the Company:

The Company maintains adeauate capital 1o meet the minimum capital requirement as prescribed by SECP in
section 11 of the Insurance Rule 2077 The company's paid capital remined Rs.1.507.720milliones compared 1o
reguiremant of R, 700 milion

Retirement Benefits:

The Compeny cperates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees. The amount of gratuity
fund lisbility at year end has been computed by the Appointed Actuary. Balance of unfunded Gratuty as at
Cecember 31, 2024 was Rs 76 88 milion [2023: Rs: 54.02 million).

Investment in Assaciate Undertaking

The company has invested Rs 9674 millon [cost] in Mutual Fund managed by 2 WT Investments Ltd during the
reparting period. All this information is adequately disclosed in the financial statements In the relevant notes.
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Related party transactions

Atthe end of each guarter, the Board of Directorsapproves the Company's transactions made with associated
companies and related parties based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee. All such tTransactions
are in the normal course of business and executed at arm's length basis.

Risk Management & Reinsurance:

The Company's rensurance arrangements are with the internationally recognized reinsurers, taving high credit
ratings The Company has developed the nsk management policy and placed it at the website of the Campany
as mandated by Listed Companies [Code of Corporate Governancel Regulations, 20719, The pelicy provides
guidance to the Company regarding the management of fisk within the Company to suppart the achievement
of carporate chjectves and ensure financial sustainability of the Compariy,

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Board is aware of its responsibilities as estabiished by the Code of Corporate Goverrance issued by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). fccordingly, the following is stated:

= The firarcial statements are prepared by the maragement of the Company, present fairluits state of affairs,
the result of s operations, cash flows and changes in eguity.

* Proper books of account of the Cormpany have been maintained.

= Appropriate accounting poicies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements,
changes, if any, are appropriately disclosed in the financial statements and accounting estimates are basea
on reasonable and prudent judgment

* Intermational Financial Reporting Standards and Intemational Accounting Standards, as applicable in Palustan,
rave been followed in preparztion of financial staternents and any depariure there from has been adequately
gisclosed and explained

* The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored

* Since M/s RSM Avais Hyder Liaguat MNauman- Chartered Accountants will complete their
S-Uear terms at the concfusion of upcoming Annual General Meeting, therefore the Board of Directors in
compliance of Clause Ixiv of the ‘Code of Corporate Governanice for Insurers, 2018'on the recommendation
of the Audit Committee propose the appointment of Mg BDO Ebrahim & Co, Chartered Accountantsfor
shareholders' approval to haold the office of external auditars for the year ending December 31, 2C25.

* The Board is ultimately responsible for the Company's system of internal control and reviewing its
effectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve objectives, and by its nature can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. Business strategies agreed to divisional level are approved by the Board. In
addition, there is an annual budgeting and strategic planning process. Financial results are prepared guarterly
and these strateges are reviewed during the yaar 1 reflect significant changes in the bus ness enviranment

* The principa features of control framework include

+ Evaluation and agproval procedures for maior capital expenditure and other transactians.

* Regular reporuing and manitoring of financial performance of the Company as a whole, using operating
developments and guarterly financial statements, which highlight key performarice indicators and
variance frorm budgets and quarterly forecasts

* Review of the group's heaith, safety, environment cantingency management processes and other

significart policies

Triere are na doubits upon the Compary's ability to continue as a going cancern,

Thiere has been no material departure from the best practices of corperate governance

The key operating and financial data for the last six years is annexed

The statement of shareholding in the Company as December 31, 2024's included with the Report,

There has been na trading during the year in the shares of the Company carried out by the Directors,

CEJ, CFC, Company Secretary Head of Internal 2udit and their spouses and minar children

. 8 ® @
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The compaosition of the board of directors and their meetings

* Total number of Directors are seven [7) which consists of
(a] Male OB
(b) Femae 01

Tre Compasition of Board of Directors of the Company as at year end consist of the following

Category Mames
Independent Directors Apesha Rafigue

Tarig Hameed
Executive Director Jehanzeb Zafar - CEQ

MNon-Executive Directors

Lt Gen Nauman Mahmuocd (Retd)
Rizwan Ullah Khan

Ma). Ger. kamran 4li [Retd}

Malils Riffat Mahmood
Munammed Moman Akhter

« During the year 2024, five[S] meetings of the Board of Directors were held and attendance position was

as under
Serial No | Name of Director Number of Meetings Attended
&) Lt. Gen. Mauman Mahmood [Retd | 05 ot of 05
02 Rizwan Ulah Khan O5out of 05
03 Ma|. Gen. Kamran Al [Retd) 04 out of 05
o4 Malik Riffat Manmood 05 ot of 05
05 Tarig Hameed 04 out of 05
06 Javed Yunus O outof 05
a7 Lesha Rafigue 04 out of 05
& Mubammad Noman Akdter OO out of G5
o9 Jehanzeb Zafar - CED 05 outof 05

*Resigned during the year
**&ppointed on 77122024 in place.of Mr. Javed Yunus
Leave of absence was granted to the Directors wha could not attend the Board meeting.

Composition of Board Committees:

+ The Board has formed the following Board committees:

1)

Ethics, Human Resource, Remuneratiaon and Nominations Committee:

Mame of the Member Category
Auesha Rafigue Charperson
Fizwar Lllah Khan Member
Mg Gen Kamran &l [Retd) Member
Jehanzeb Zafar Member
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3

1)

2

3

Investment Committee:

Name of the Member Category
Malik Riffat Mahmood Chairman
Rizwan Lish Hhan Meambear
Maj. Gen kamran All Retd) Membear
Jehanzeb Zatar MMember
Rehan Mabir Member
Mohammead Azmat Ullah Sharif Member
Audit Committees:
Mame of the Member Category
Taria Hamead Chairman
Rizwan Ulzah Khan Member
Malik Riffat Mahmood Member
* The Board has formed the following Management Committess:
Underwriting & Reinsurance Committee:
Name of the Member Category
Maj, Gen. kamran &l (Retd) Chairman
Jehanzeh Zatar Mamber
Mohammad Azmat Ullan Sharif Member
Sumair Sarwar Member& Secretary
Claim Settlement Committee:
Name of the Member Category
Rizwezn Ullah Hhan Charman
Jehanzed fafar Membar
Rehan Mobin Member
Muhammad Taufeeg Hanif Member& Secraetary
Risk Management & Compliance Committee
Name of the Member Category
Ma| Gen Kamran Al [Retd) Chairman
Tarig Hameaed Member
Jehanzeh Zafar Member
Rehan Mabin Member
Monammad fzmat Ullan Sharif Member

Atif Sharmim Syed

Member& Secretary
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Remuneration policy of Non-Executive Directors:

The Board value the representation of independent directors and their expertise in the business. The remunaration
policy is aporaved by the Board to appreciate member directors for their professional contribution towards the
sustainabiliity and growth of the Company. In addition of meeting fee, the directors are aisc reimbursed for
traveling boarding &lodging and ancilary expenses, where needed by the respective Board membersin perfarming
his/her duties Board has alse ensured the remuneration of independant directors shall be appropriate and
commensurate with The level of expertise offered by Independent Directors. A formal Board Remuneration Policy
ig In plece that serves as e guiding tawer for establishing the remuneration of Beard Members.

The details of the remuneration of the CEQ and fees paid to the Directors are disclosed in Note 38t thefinancial
stetements.

Code of Conduct

Tre Board of Directors has adopted the professional standards and corporate values in conducting the businessof
life inswrance with honesty and integrity, The roles 8 respansibiities of the Company & employees towards the
stakeholders are mentioned the form of code of conduct as whole the Board is taking necessary steps to
disseminate the code of conduct throughout Company and is also available on the website of the Company.

Future Outlook

The Board remains steadfastin its mission, wgether with our dedicated team and loyal customers, we are ready
to embrace tomorrow's challenges and opportunities, defivering enduring protection, prosperity, and peace of
mind for generations to come

Wie are confident that our strong foundation of customer vust, financial resilience and forward-thinking strategies
postions us to not only navigate the challenges faced due to changes in economic condition of the country
as a whole but to lead through them. Our strategic focus remains aligned with sustainable growth, ensuring
stablity and value creation for stakeholders amid evolving economic condiions

Wi will contnue to focus in providing best leve! of services to our custamers with modernized products with
COMpETTVE IMVeStMEeNt return, continue to enhiance our customer experience by providing sdvanced technalogical
touls and will continue to grow our customer reach by expanding uur distribution network Looking ahead, we
are energized by the potential of our strategic Initiatives and commitment 1o sustainable growth ensuring decent
return to our sharehiolders,

By staying true to our core values and purpose, we are not only building a stronger, more agile crganization but
als contribLuting to a brighter tomorrow for al stakeholders. Tegether, we step forward into the coming year
with ambition, determination. and an uriwavering belief in the power of progress

Statement Of Code Of Conduct

The Bnard has adopted the statement of Code of Conduct. Al empiouses are informed of this statement and
are required to cbserve these rules of conduct in relation to business and regulations.

Gender pay Gap Statement

Genger pay gap calculated for the year ended 3istCecember, 2024
(il Mean Gender Pay Gap: B3 24%

(i) Median Pay Gap: 4802%

Registered Office:

The Company has registered office is in Rawapind.

Dividend

The Beoard of Directors after careful consideration, has decided not to declare a dividend for this year,
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This decision has been made in order to reinvest the profits into the Company, ensuring we continue to build
on this positive momentum and strengthen our financial pasition for the future. The Board remains focused on
maximizing long-term value for shareholders and believes that retaining earnings will provide the best oppartunity
for sustained growth and prefitability in the yeears te come. We are confident that this 2pproach will help secure
ever greater success moving forward

Pattern Of Shareholding

The pattern of sharenolding. as required by section 236 of the Companies Act 2017 and Code of Cerporate
Governance is enclosed,

Statutory Auditors

Sin e M/s RSM #vais Hycer Liggquat Mauman- Chartered 2ccountents will complete their
S-year terms at the conclusion of upcoming 4nnual General Meeting, therefore the Boarg of Directors in
ompliance of Clause l«iv of the "Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 20168 on the recommendation
of the 2udit Committee propose the appeintment of M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered &ccountants for
shareholders' approval to hold the office of external auditors for the year ending December 31, 2025

Acknowledgement

The Directors of Askari Life remain committed to ensuring the continued growth and financial stabiity of the
company. Despite the challenges presented by the evolving ecanomic environment, we have maintained a
strong position in the market by focusing on our strateqic gaals, enhancing customer service. and adapting to
emerging wends in the industry. We heartfeit thanks and gratitude to the Securities & Exchange Commissicn
oif Pakistan, the Insurance Association of Pakistan (AP] the rensurers and the bankers far their continued
guidance and support to the Company's management We extend our gratitude to our valued policy halders,
corporate clients, employess. and sharehiolders for thelr unwavering trust and support As we move forward,

The Board locks forward 1o another successful year and tofurther cortributing to the growth and development
of the insurance sector in the Country.

For and or bebalf of the Board of Directors

Director Chief Eiﬁﬁ:e*

Date: March 20, 2025
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KEY FINANCIAL DATA FOR THE LAST SIX YEAR DATA

SEATEMENT OF COMPRENENSIVE DNCOME
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Independent Auditor's Review Report
To the members of Askari Life Assurance Company Limited

Review Reoport on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 and Code of Corporate Governance lor Insurers, 2016

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companles (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 and Lthe Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 20716 (both herein referred
Lo as the Regudations’| prepared by the Board of Directors of Askar| Life Assurance Comgany Limited {'the
Company') for the year ended December 31, 2024 In accordance with the reguirerments of regulation 36 of the
Listed Comgpanies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and provisions of the Code of Corporale
Governance for Insurers, 2016

The responskility for compliance with the Regulations Is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsitility s to review whelher the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
comphance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does nol and Lo highlight any non-compliance
with the requirements af the Regulations. A review s lmited primarity to inguiries of the Company's personne
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations

As a pait of our audit of the linancial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounling
and internal controd systems sufficient to plan the audit ond develop an effective audit approach. We are not
reguired to consider whether the Board of Directors” staternent on internal control covers all risks and controls
or 1o form an opinion on the effectiveness of such mternal controls. the Company’'s corporate governance
procedures and risks.

The Regulations reguire the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Carmimitiee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, itsrelated party transactions
We are only reguired and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the
related party transactions by the Soard of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee,

Based on our review, nathing has come to owr attention which causes us to befieve that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects. with the
reguirements contained in the Regutations as applicabie to the Company for the year ended December 37, 2024,

Clmrter el Acmunr:Fms ,

Karachl
Dated: March 21, 2025

UDIN: CRZ0241024 2Cr 5080k |

FHE POWER [F BEING UNDERSTOOD
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Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 &
Listed Companies [Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 Year ended
December 31, 2024

Askari Life Assurance Company Limited

This staterment ‘s beirg preserted in compliznce with the Code of Corporate Governance forinsurers, 2016 and
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governancel Regulations 2013, for the purpose of establishing a framework
of gnod Governance, whereby the Company is maniaged in compliance with the best practices of corporate
QUVernance

The Company has appiied the principles cortained in the Codein the following mannes

-

The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:

a Mae &
b Femala.

2 The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive Directors and Directors

representing minority interests on Its Board of Directors. At present the Board includes:

Category Names
Independent Directors 4yesha Rafigue
Tariq Hameed
Executive Directar Jehanzeb Zafar-CEC
Maor-Executive Directors Lt Gen. Mauman Mahmoocd [Retd)

Ma;, Gen Kamran All (Retd]
Rizwan Ullah Khan

Maiik Riffat Mahmiood
Muhammad Nomean Akhbtar
Female Cirector Ayesha Rafigue

4|l the independent Directors meet the criteria of independence as laid down under the Code of
CorporateGavernanceforinsurer, 2076 and Listed Companies (Cade of Carporate Governance| Regulstions
2078,

The directors have confimned that nane of them is serving as a director in more thanseven listed compeanies,
including this Company.

During the year Mr Javed Yunus resigned and Mr Muhammad Noman Akttar appairted in place of Javed
Yunus with in specified time.

Al [the resident directors of the Company are registered as tax payers and none o fthem has defaulted in
payment of any loan to a Banking Company, A Development Financiallnstitution (DF1) or Non-Banking
Financial Institution or, being 8 member of stock exchangehas been declared as a defaulter by a stock
exchange.

The Company has prepered & Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken
to dissemingte it throughout the Company along with supporting policies and procedures,

The Board has developed a vision 'mission statement, oversll Carporate Strategy and significant policies
of the Company. A complete record of perticulars of significent policies along with the dates on which
they were sporoved has been maintained.
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8. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including
appuirtment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of emplogment of other executive
directors and the key officers, have been taken by the Board as empowered by the relevant provisions of
the Act and Code of Corporate Governance 2018 regulations.

8  The mestings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and the Board metatleast once in every
guarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, along with agenda andw orking papers were clrculated at
least seven [07] days before the meeting The minutesct the meetng were aporapriately recorded and
circulated The Board has complied with the requiremenits of the act and regulations with respect ta frequency,
recarding and crreulating minutes ofthe Board meeting.

10 Tre Board has established a system of sound internal control, which is effectively implemerited at all levels
within the Company The Company has adooted and complied with all the necessary aspects of internal
aritrals given n the Code according to the provided tmeline.

11 The Company has aranged ordentation course for its Directors during the yearto apprise them of their dutes
and responsibilitie sand alsc about amendments in laws and regulations.

12, There was no change of Chef Finanicial Officer, Fead of Intemal &udit and Company Secretary

13 The Directars' report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Code of
Corporate Guvernance far Insurers, 20716, Listed Comparnies Code of Corporate Governence 2078 and fully
describes the salient matters required to be disciosed

14, The Board of Directors have & formal policy and transparent proceduras for remuneration of directors n
accordance with the Actand these Regulations

15 The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by the Chief Executive Officerand Chief
Firencial Officer before approval of the Board

16. The Directors, Chief Executive Officer and others executives do not hald any interest intheshares of the
Company other than disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

17, The Company has compiied with all the corporate and finencial reporting requirements of the Code of
Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2076,

18. The Board has formed the following Management Committess:

1) Undenwriting & Reinsurance Committee:

MName of the Member Category

Mg, Gen Kamran 41 (Reta) Chairman

Jehanzeb Zafar Member

Azmatullah Sharif Mambear

Sumair Sarwar Member & Secretary

2] Claim Settlement Committes:

Name of the Member Category

Fizwan Uliah <han Charman

Jehanzeb Zafar Member

Fehan Mabin Member
Miuhammad Taufeeg Hanif Member & Secretary
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3] Risk Management & Compliance Committee

Name of the Member Category

Ma). Gen Kamran Ali (Retd] Chairman

Tarig Hameed Member

Jehanzeh Zafar Member

Rehan Mobin iMember
Mohammad 4zmatuliah Sharif Member

Atif Shamim Syed Member & Secretary

18, The Board has formed the following Board committees:

1) Ethics, Human Resource, Remuneration and Nominations Committee:

Name of the Member Category
Ayesha Rafigue Chairperscn
Rizwan Ullah Khan Mambear
Maj. Gen Kamran 41 (Retd) Membier
Jehanzeb Zafar Mermber
Wagas Waseem Secretary
2) Investment Committee:

Name of the Member Category
Malik Rffat Mahmood Chairmarn
Rizwan Lllah Khan rMember
Maj Gen Karnran Ali (Retd) Member
Jehanzeb Zafar Member
Rehan Mobin Member
Mohammad 2zmatullah Sharif Member
Muhammad Nadesm Rajput Secretary

2C The Board has alsc formed an Ludit Committes, It comprises of three members. all of whom ame non-
executive Directors and the Chairman of the Committee is an independent Director. The composition of the

Audit Committesis as folows:

Audit Committee:

Name of the Member Category
Tarig Hameed Chairman
Rizwan Ullah Khan Member
Malik Riffat Mahmaood Member
Munammad Nadeem Rajput Secretary

271 Two meetings of the Investment Committes ware held during the year 2024 The meeting of Audit Committee
was held at least once every guarter prior to aporoval of interim and final results of the Company and as
required by the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2006, The terms of reference of the aforesaid
committees have been formed, and advised to the committee furcompliance.

=22 An effective internal Audit function is in place which is suitably gualified and experienced for the purpose
and is corversant with the palicies and procedures of the Company.

23. The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Compliance Officer and the Head of Internal Audit possess
such guaificaton and expenence asis required under the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers 20718
The ¢ppointed 2ctuary of the Company also maets the conditions as laid down in the said Code Moreover,

Annual Report 2024 {40}




the persons heading the underwriting .claim, reinsurance, risk management and grievance functions /
departments possess qualification and experience of direct relevance to their respective functions, as
required under section 12 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 [(Drdinance No X404 of 2000,

Name of the Person Designation
Jehanzeb Zafar Chief Executive Cfficer
Rehan Mabin Chief Financial Officer
Moharmmad Azmat Uliah Sharif Chief Operating Cfficer/Actuary/Head of Risk Management
ALif Shamim Syed Compliance Officer
Muhammad Nadeem Rajput Company Secretary
Mubashir Ahmed Mamaoon Head of Internal Audit
Sumair Sarwar Head of Underwriting
Mohammad Taufeeq Hanif Head of Claims
Mohi-ul-Hag Alvi Head of Reinsurance
Azfar Khan Head of Grievance

24 The statutory aueitors of the Company have been appointed from the panel of auditors approved by the
Commission in terms of section 48 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 [Ordinance Mo, XxXI¥ of 2000). The
statutory auditors have confirmed that they have been given as at is factory rating under the Quality Contro!
Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they cr any of the partners of
the firm, their spouses and minor children do not holds hares of the Company and that the firm and all its
partners are in complianice with the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC] guidelines on code of
ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered 2ccountants of Pakistan

25. The statutory auditors or the persong associated with them have not been appointed toprovide other
services except in accordance with the fisting reguiations and the auditors have confirmed that
they have ohserved IFAC guidelines in this regard.

26. The tppeirted Letuany by the Company has confirmed that naither henorhis spouse and mincr ehildren
hoid ghares of the Company

27 The Board ensures that the 2ppointed Sctuary comples with the requirements setout for bim in the Code
of Corporate Governancefor Insurers, 2016

28 The Board ensures that the investment pulicy of the Company has been drawn Up in accordance with the
provisions of the Codeof Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2076,

29 The Board ensures that the Risk management system of the Company is in place as per the reguirement
of the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2076

30. The Company hias setup 2 risk management funetion, which carmes out its tasks as covered under the Code
of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 20716,

3. The Beard has developed a mechanism for the annual evaluation of the board s own performance, members
of board and of its committees.

32 The Board ensures that as part of the risk managemenit system, the Company gets rated from PACRA
which 1s baing used by its risk management function/department and the respective Committes as a risk
monitoring toael The rating assigned by the said rating agency is A (ifs) with stable outiook.

33 The Board has setup & grevance depertment/functionas per the reguirement of the Code of Corporate
Gowvernancefor Insurers, 2018,
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34 The Company has not obtainedany exemptions from the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
inrespect of the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance fornsurers, 2076,

25. We confirm that all other material principles contained in the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers,
206 have been complied with

35. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3678273233 and 36 cfthe Code of Corporate Governance
Regulations, 2019 have been complied with.

37 Regulation 6 (1) the Listed Companies [Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2018, requires that
‘each listed comnpany shall have at least two or one third members of the Board, whichever is higher, as
independent directors’ At time of the last election of Directors, the Company assessed its compliance with
this RegUiation. One third of the Company's total number of Directors results in a fractional number [2.33),
Tre fraction has not been rounded up to one and therefore, the Board of Directors cumenty has 2 independent
Directors. The Company considers that the existing composition of the Board of Directors brings in the
relevant experience and valuable contributions to the Board.

By order of the Board

5l

Jehanzeb Zafar
Chief Executive Officer

Date March 20, 2025
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Shariah Advisor Review Report to the Board of Directors
Year ended December 31, 2024
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The Company was licensed by the SECP and commenced its Window Takalul Cperations in
2019. By the grace of Almighty Allah. the year under review marked the sixth year of the
Company's Takaful operations. The dedicated and sincere efforts of the management and
development staff. along with the support and guidance of the Board of Directors, are
commendable, These efforts have enabled the Company to underwrite progressive and
impressive figures across all distribution channels of Askari Life-WTO, including Individual
and Group Family Takaful segments, in the reporting vear 2024

| have examined the accompanying financial statements, Takaful products, and Investment
Policy of Askan Life Assurance Company Limited - Window Takaful Operations (hereafter
referred to as “the Window Takaful™) for the year ended December 31, 2024,

As the Shariah Advisor of the Window Takaful, | acknowledge that it is my responsibility 1o
ensure that the financial arrangements, confracts, and transactions entered into by the
Window Takaful with its participants and stakeholders comply with Shariah rules and
principles. It is the responsibility of the Window Takaful's management to ensure compliance
with the rules, principles, and guidelines set by the Shariah Advisor and 1o ensure that all
policies and product offered are duly approved by the Shariah Advisor.

The primary scope of the Shariah Audit is to review the Window Takaful's compliance with
Shariah guidelines, including the examinalion of appropriate evidence of transactions
undertaken by the Window Takaful during the year 2024,

It is the responsibility of the Shanah Advisor to express an opinion on the submitted financial
statements. Based on the provided information and explanations, my findings are as follows:

1. The financial transactions undertaken by the Window Takaful for the year ended
December 31, 2024, were in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Shariah
Advisor as well as the requirements of the Takaful Rules, 2012,

2. Guidance has been provided regarding the development of new products and the
review of the investment policy in compliance with statutory and Shariah laws,
Furthermore, the management of the Window Takaful has been advised to strictly
adhere to Shariah compliance and seek clarification when required. Further a new
product, Muhafiz, has been introduced in the product line, duly approved by the
Shariah Advisor and the SECP. et

7
"_',,-'"
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3, The management is hopeful and optimistic that this new product will serve as a
valuable addition and contribute to the business growth.

4. Training sessions were conducted for the management, development, and operational
staff to enhance their understanding of Takaful principles and the fundamentals of
Takaful products. | hope these leaming sessions will continue in the future for new
entrants and to keep the staff updated on changes in the business environment.

5. Consequently, we have found that the Window Takaful adheres to Shariah principles
in all ransactional aspects.

In conclusion, [ pray to Almighty Allah (Subhanahu Wa Ta'ala) to guide us on the Sirat-¢-
Mustageem, enable us to overcome all hindrances and weaknesses, bring financial prosperity
to Askari Life Window Takaful Operations and all its stakeholders, and [ulfill the
expectations of our Takaful participants by earning their confidence and trust through our
competitive product and returns.

s w

Dr. Muhammad Zubair Usmani
Shariah Advaer
— WINDOW TAKAFUL OPERATIGNS
ASHARI LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITID
Mufti Zubair Usmani
Shariah Advisor
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Management's Statement of Compliance with the Shariah Principles
Year ended December 31, 2024
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The financial arrangements, contracts and transactions, entered into by Askari Life Assurance Company

Limited — Window Takaful Operations (the Company) for the year ended December 31, 2024 are in
compliance with the Takaful Rules, 2012.

Further we confirm that;

¢ The Company has developed and implemented all necessary policies and procedures in accordance
with the Takaful Rules, 2012 and the rulings of the Shariah Advisor. A comprehensive compliance
mechanism is in place, ensuring adherence to these rulings and regulatory guidelines with zero
tolerance. Governance structures, including periodic reporting to the Audit Committee, Sharish
Advisor, and the Board of Directors, are being followed effectively.

¢ The Company has conducted trainings and orientations for its staff to ensure a high level of
awareness and adherence to Sharigh principles. Additionally, all manuals, agreements, and
approvals issued by the Shariah Advisor and Board of Directors are made available to the relevant
stakeholders.

e All the products and policies have been approved by Shariah Advisor and the financial
arrangements including policies, contracts and transactions, entered by Window Takaful
Operations are in accordance as approved by Shariah Advisor.

« The assets and liabilities of Window Takaful Operations (Participant Takaful Fund and Operator's
Sub Fund) are segregated from its other assets and liabilities, always in accordance with the
provisions of the Takaful Rules, 2012.

e In line with our commitment to product innovation and Shariah compliance, the Company has
introduced a new Takaful product, Muhafiz, which has been duly approved by the Sharish Advisor
and the SECP. Management is optimistic that this new product will enhance business growth and
further strengthen the Company’s position in the Takaful market.

This has Heen duly confirmed by the Shariah Advisor of the Company.

P
Jeha

Chief Executive Officer
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INDEPENDENT REASONABLE ASSURAMNCE REPORT Katachi 75530 - Pakist
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ASKARILIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED W R L

REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S ASSESSMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH THE 5HARIAH PRINCIPLES

W were engaged by the Board of Directors of Askari Life Assurance Company Limited {“"the Campany ™) ta repart
onihe managerment s assassment of compliznce of the Window T akalul Operations (" Takaful \Operations”} of the
Company, as sl aut in the annexed statement prezared by the management for the year ended December 31
024, witn the Takatu Rules, 2012 In the form of an independent reasonable assurance concluslon about whether
the arnexed statement preserts falely the status of campliance of the Cperations with the Takaful Bules, 2072 In
Al mat erigd respacts,

Applicable Criteria

The criteria against wales e subjecl matter information {the Statement) is assessed comprise of the provisions
of Takalul Rules, 2012

Responsibilities of the Management

It Hoerd of Direo lorsd managemen! of Lhe Company are responsible for designing, impéementing and maintaining
rigrnal contrals relevant to the preparation of the annexed statement that s free frome material misstatement,
wihether dus te fraed or error. 10 also includes ensuring The overdl compliznce of the Takalul Operations with the
Takalul Rules, 2012,

The Board of Directars/management of the Campany 2re also responsible for preventing and detecting fravd and
Foridentilying and ensuring that the Takaful Operations comply with laws and regulations applicable toits activitios.
They are also respansible for ensuring that the management, where appropriate, thase char ged with governance,
and personnel involved with the Takaful Operations compliance with the Takaful Rules, 2072 are properiy tramed,
sy slems are propesly updated anc that any changes in reporting encompass all significan! business units,

Our Independence and Quality Control

Wio have complied with the incependerce and ather ethical requi-ements of the Code of Ethics far Chartered
Accouttants [ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, which s Taunded on furdament al
principles of integrity, objectivity, professicnal competence and due care, confidentiality and professional benavior,

The firrm applies Imernational Standard on Quality Consrol 1 Quality Control for Firms That Perform Audits anc
Reviews of Historical Finandal Information, and Gther Assurance ano Related Services Engagements” ang
accardingly maintains a comprehensive system of cuallty control including cocumented policies and procedures
regardng compliance with ethical requirements. professional standarcs and applicable legal anc regulatory
requirements.

THE FOWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
ASSLRANCE | TAX | CONSLLTING
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Cur Responsibilities

e rosmrsibilily is Lo examineg the annexed statement and ta repost theraan in the farm of an indeponden:
reasarable assurance conclusion based on the evidence obtained. We conducted cur engagement in accordance
wit ntematianal Standard on AssJrance Engagemeants (SAE) 3000 (Revised), Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information issued oy the International Auditing and Assurances
Stancosds Board, That standard reguiresthat wea plan and perfore our procedures bo abtamn reasonzble assurancs
aaout whather the annexed staiemenl presents fairly Lhe status of compliance af the Takalul Operations with s
Takalul Hules, 2072, inallmalerial respects

Ihe procedures salacted depend on our judgmert, including the assessmenl of the risks al material non
compliance with the Takatul Rules, 2002, whether dus ta fraud or error, nmaking those risk assassments, we havs
corsiderad internal controf relevant to the Takal il Qperations complignoe wilh the Takalul Rules, 2002 inarder 10
revs i Assurant & procedures hal are approprizlein the croemstances, but nat for the purposes of capressing a
corclusion as to the effectiveness of the Campany s internal controlaver the Takaful Operatlons’ cempliance witn
v Takalul Rules, 2072, Reasonanke assurance 15 less than absolute assurance,

Aosyslemolicdermal control, because af its nature, may not prevent or detect all instances of non-compliance with
|akaful Hules, 20013, ang conseguently cannat provide absalute assurance that the objective of camplianoe with
Fakalul Aufes, 20702, will e met, Alsa, projection of any evaluation of effectivencss to future periads (s subject to
1o sk that the cantrols may became inadeguate or fail

The arpcadures perfarmed included.
= Evaiugte thesystems: procedures, and practices in place with respect to the Takaful operations against tha
Takalul Rules 2072 anid Shariah advisor's guidelines,

+ [Cuauating the governance arrangements incuding the reporting of events and status to those charged witn
relevant respansibllities, such as the Audit Committee, Sharlah Advisor and the board of direclors,

= (o=l for @ sample of transactions relating to Takaful operations 1o ensure that these are carried out 0
cocordance with the laid down procedures ano practices including the regulations relating to Takaful operations
25 laid dawn 0 Takalul Rukes, 2012; and

« Fesiew the statement of management's assessment of compliance of the Takalul transactions for the year
orded 31 Decermber 2024 with the Takalul Rules. 20702

Cancluslon

Cr conclusion hias been formed on Lhe bBasis of, and is subject ta, the matters autiined in this repart, We bolicye
that tre evidence we have obtamed is sufficlent and appropriate to provide abasis for our conclus on

I our gpinion. the annexed staterment, for the year ended 37 December 2024 presents fairly the stalus al
compliance of the Takaful Operations with the Takaful Rules, 2012, inall material respects.

i
M k.l%-l' 'L-LIN?_"“—QL
Chartered Accountnts

Karachi
[Tste: March 21, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUMMTOR'S REPORT
TD THE MEMBERS OF ASKARILIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
REPORT OM THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS

Opinion

‘We have audited the annexed financial statements of Askari Life Assurance Company Limited [the
Campany ), which comprise the statement of linancial position as at Decernber 31, 2024, and the staterment
of comprehensive Income, the statement af changes in equity and statement of cash flow for the year then
ended, and notes to the finandal statements, induding a summary of significant accounting polices and
aother explanatory information and we state that we have cbtained all the infermation and explanatians
which, to the best of our knowiedge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit,

In aur opinion and to the best of our iInformation and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of linandal position, the statement of comprebensive income | the statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flow together with the notes forming part thereof confarm with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2007 (XI1X af 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and falr view of the state of Company's affairs as at December 31, 2024 and af the
lass, gther comprehensive incame, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended

Basls for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing {ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan, Our responsibliities under those standards are further described in the Auditer s Responsibilities
for the Auwdit of the Finandal Statements section of our repart. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accouritants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code} and we have
fulfited our ather ethical responsibdities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained i sufficient and appropriate Lo provide a basis for our opinion

Emphasls of Matter

We draw attention to note 26,13 to the finandal statements, which describes that the certain insurance
companies has challenged the scope and applicablity of the provinclal sales tax on services on the gremium
framinsurarce /lakalul business in pravingial high courts,

The Honourable Sindh High Court has dismissed the cace with a direction to approach the Sindh Revenue
Hoard regarding the taxabiity af life and health insurance business, However, the insurance companies have
elected 1o escalate the matter by filing a constitutional petition before the Honourabie Supreme Court of
Pakistan

The Company has neither charged provincial sales tax to its clients nor recognized any related
liability In the accompanying financial statements. Management, based on legal opinion, remains
canfident that the final outcome of the case will be in the Company’s favar,

Dur oplnian is not modified In respect of this matter,

THE FOWER OF BEING LNDERSTONOD
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Koy Audit Matters

ey audit matters are those matters that, in our professionat judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the finandal statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financlal statements as a whaole, and in forming our apinion thereon, and we do nol provide a
separate opinion on these matters,

Fallowing are the Key Audit Matters

s No. | Key Audit Matters How Our Audit Addressed the Key Audit
- Matters ) )
Valuation of insurance iabiities Dur audit procedures included the following:
|
Refer note 20 to the finangal | OPtained an  uncerstanding  from  the
stAtETERES: management. of the actuarial assumption and
methodologles  used  for  estimating  the
The Company has significant Insurance | Policyholder's liabilities a5 ot December 31,2024
liabililies representing 74.96% ol the
| Company s totallizbllities. This Is an area Tested the relevance and reasonableness of
that involves signiflcant judgement over those assumgtions and methods.
uncertain future cutcomes, mainly the
1 Tested the relevance, completencss, and

ultimate total settiement value of lang-
term palicyhalder liabilitles. Econormic
assumptions,  including  Investment
returr, and associated discount rates,
and operating  assumptions  including
mortafily, morbidily, expenses and
persistency (including censideration of
policyholder benavior) are the key
Inputs usedto estimate theselong-term
liaiilites. Assessed Lhe relevant disclosures made in the
frmancial statements to determine whether
these compled with the accounting and
reparting standards as applicable in Pakistan,

accuracy of that source data used for (he
valuation,

Tested the wvaluation for accuracy and
oetermining whether the assumptions were
consistently  applied In the waluation
Recomputed on a test basls, the effect of
unearned premium.
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Rnuale Recu:;;'rl_i:;n

Reter tonote 27 (o financial statements
for Insurance Premiums / Contributions
Revenue and 28 for Investment income,

The Company recelves 1S revenue
primarily  fram  two  main sources
namely; premiumss contributions and
iInvestments income.

We identified revenue recognition as a
key audit matter as It is one of the key
performance indicators of the Company
and because af the potential risk that
revenue  lransactions may not  be
recognized in the appropriate perind,
Further there Is significant increase In
revenue from the last year,

Cur audit prucedl;ues included the following:

Obtained an wunderstanding, evaluated the
deslgn and tested the controls over the process
of capturing, processing and recording  of
information related to premiums andinvestment
income,

For a risk-based sample of policies of non-unit
linked business where premiumis outstanding at
the year end, compared recoivable recorded
with the terms of palicy,

Recalculated reinsurance premium based on the
rates given in rainsurance treaty.

Selected sample-based policies and traced ther
back (o accounting records.

For asample of investment income transactions.

tested that investment income |s recorded
based on the effective interest method or where
| right to recelve the dividend is established,

Information Other Than the Financlal Statements and Auditoer’s Report Thereon

e management is respansible for the other infarmation. The other information comprises the information
included in the annug report but does not include the linancial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the finandial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon

in connection with our audit of the financal statements, our respansibility 1s to read the other information
and, In daing so. consider whether the ather informatian is materially inconsistent with the financial
stalements or our knowledge ablained i the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. I,
based on the work we have performed, we conchude that there is 3 material misstatement of this other
infarmation; we are reguired to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibliities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements n
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the reguirements of
Imsurance Ordinance, 2000 and Companles Act 2017 (XIX of 2077) and for such Internal centrol as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or errar.
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In preparing the financial statements. management |s responsible for assessing the Company’s abitity to
continue as a gaing concorn, disclosing, as applicabie, matters related to going concern and usng the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to Hguldate the Company or to cease
operations. or has no realistic aiternathee but to do so.

Board of dgroctorsis responsible for overseeing the Cormpany’s financial reporting process
Auditor's Responsihilities for the Audit of the Finandal Staterments

Cur pbjectives are 1o obtain reasanable assurance about whether the financlal statements as a whole are
free frommaterial misstatement whother due ta fraud or error, and to Issue an auditer s report that includes
aur oginion. Reasonabbe assurance Is ahigh level of assurance. but Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
irtaccordance with 1SA< as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatermert s can arise from fraud or error and are conssdered material IF, iIndividually or inthe aggregate,
ey coutd reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financiai statements.

As part of an audit In accordance with 1545 as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional jdgment and
maintain professional skepticsm throughout the audit, We also:

o (dentily and assess (he risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud
ar error, design and perform audit procedures responsive Lo those risks, and obtan audit evidence that
|= suHficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane resulting from error, as fravd may involve
collusion forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of mternal contral;

» (Obtaln an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures §hst
are appropriate in the circemstances. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on tho
effectiveness of the Company's internal cantrol;

« Ewaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosur es made by management;

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management s use of the going concern basis of accounting and.
hased on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt an the Company's ability to continue as a going cancern, if we
ronclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required Lo draw al tention in our suditars report To
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, If such disclosures are inadeguate, 1o mocdity aw
oplnion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up te the date of our auditor's report.
Howewver, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease Lo Continue as a going canoern,

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial staterments. including the
gisclosures. and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and eventsina
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We comimunicate withthe Board of directors regarding. among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiendies in internal control that we
identify during our audit,

We also pravide to the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all refationships and other matters
that may reasonabiy be thought to bear onour independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance i the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in gur auditor s report unless law or regulation preciudes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we delermine that amatter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to sutweigh the publicinterest benefits of such communication.

Report an Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements
Based on our audit, we further regort that Inour aginlorne

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as reguired by Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and
the Companies Act, 2007 (XX of 2017);

h) the staterment of financlal position. the statement af comprehensive Income, the statement of changes
inequity and the cash fliow statement together with the notes thereon have bean drawnup in conformity
with the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Companles Act 2077 (XX of 2077). and are in agresment with
the books of account;

c) the apportiocnment of assels, labilities. revenue and expenses between Lwa or mare funds has heen
performed in accordance with the advice of the appointed actuary:

d) investmentsmade, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose
of the company's business; and

o) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVII of 1980), was deducted by
the Company and deposited in the Central £akat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance

The engagernent partner on the audit resulting in this iIndependent avditor's report is Adnan Zaman

L:
Chartered &muﬂtants‘ ‘1{.‘*‘-“—\—4

Warachi
[Jate; March 27, 2025

UDIN: AR2D24102 4 2pevGlavOb
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
Note -------{Rupees in '000)-------
ASSETS
Property and equipment B 17,144 13,840
Right of use assets g 18,692 32,776
Intangible assets 10 - -
Imvestments
Equity securities 1 14,132 5379
Government securities 12 1,810,188 1247127
Mutual funds 13 534,468 340,753
Loans secured against life insurance policies 5114 5382
Insurance [ reinsurance receivables 14 535M 66,814
Other loans and receivables 15 73,788 50,580
Deferred tax asset 16 - -
Taxation - payments less provision 72,307 51,343
Prepayments 17 5514 6,953
Cash and Bank 138 244 806 280,005
TOTAL ASSETS 2,949,764 2,099,002
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO
COMPANY'S EQUITY HOLDERS
Share capital 12 1,501,720 1501720
Money ceded to Wagf Fund S00 500
Ledger account D [1,683,800) (1686918
Unrealised gain on available-for-sale financial assets 5,502 6,323
Accumulated loss (44.492) (54.358)
Advance against equity 730,000 630,000
TOTAL EQUITY 509,430 396,769
LIABILITIES
Insurance liahilities 20 1,828,988 1,394 368
Retirement benefit cbligaticns 22 76,982 4018
Premium received in advance 198,790 71503
Insurance / reinsurance payables 23 165,263 46 404
Other creditors and accruals 24 150,694 104,834
Lease liability against right of use assets 25 19,617 31,108
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,440,334 1,702,233
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,949,764 _ 2099002
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 26

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 farm an integral part of these financial statements

q/

Chief Executive Officer

b s

Chief Financial Officer

Chairman

G b

Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
117 S——— [Rupees in '000)--------
Pramium revenue 2017612 1613,540
Prermium ceded to reinsurars (324.483) (359,356]
MNet premium revenue 27 1693129 1,254,184
Inwestment income 28 273,378 268773
et realised fair value gains on financial assets 29 82,130 7132
Met fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 30 1,598 825
Gther income 3 22,184 20087
389,290 295,817
MNetincome 2082419 1551007
Inzurance berefits 551,367 E21.515
Recoveries from reinsurers [205,588) (34C,084)
Met insurance benefits 32 345779 281431
Net change In insurance liabilities (other than outstanding claims) 459,485 417979
Acquisition expenses a3 838,282 672866
Marketing and administration expenses 34 391,680 320,098
Other expenses 35 28,790 17,263
Total expenses 1718237 1428212
Results of operating activities 18,403 [158.642)
Profit / (lose) before tax 18,403 (158,842
Incorme tax expenss 36 (3,280) I5,5598]
Profit / (loss) for the year 15,123 [165,240]
Other comprehensive (loss)/gain :
Change in unrealised gain/{loss] on available-for-sale financial assets [821) 5048
Actuarial foss on defined benefit obligation (1,641 {33683
(2,462 2585
Taotal cornprehensive incorme / (loss) for the year 12,661 162 555
Earning/ (loss] per shara - Rupees a7 0.10 [110)

The annexed nates from 1to 51 form an integral part of these fnancial statements

Vo ehin

Chief Executive Officer  Chief Financial Officer

/ éﬂlrég' Director

Chairman
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

AU ONUE FEECTWES
fiatad =
: Unapgerap boss on
B Copital .y Ledger fAocoont [ "“mﬁ“‘ o mﬂ‘:ﬁg’“ Total
[Apcusmaiated Ings) zals financal
BaA
IRup oo}

Babnce e gt dareany 1, 2022 1SR |B5 L) A SCE107) a0 T AWIOC0 958 524
Tota coimamehang s o o the e - |85 240) - - - - HBS 2400
Uy COmprarGrs T 0k - 1333 - 2 - 13353
Change: n far valua of Avadeble far sala macstmenas . . E LS EOdE
Dieficat foc Hee yeas 1 steboinn) sands - T Bl 1778, B - - -
advanca recelved dusdng te Lear - - - - - 2maom0 #0000
Balercs 42 8 Decembar 31 5033 e (R L] 3] [ EE] AL FEE
Bakbnce &5 at ey 1 2024 L5720 [54,R58) (UGBS &) a00 i) G000 256,788
Total comprehensae jass tor the wear . 15,123 . 15,123
Uther comprenersea ioss - |9, 81) - - B EZA )
Criernge i Far vl oF Avarlabhe for 53le iBsimer e - - - [I=31] - =3l
Surphes tor he geer In sEmAny furgs - ER ] 5] - - - -
Avarne recered donng Tie uear - - - - - 130,000 bla]uludeca]
Balincs &5 #f Decambar 51, 2034 T AsmTe #9435 [ 500 EEO2 TZ0,000 EEEEN
Tha Seessched ot From e 57 horm & wiegral 0aT of Thaal fren el Sleemenis

J// 'E%J W 2 L

_____._.—-—-_-_'_._'_._‘-' ¥

Chief Executive Officer  Chief Financial Officer Dirdéctor Director
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CASHFLOW STATEMENT
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023

Mot = ceeeeeeeee- [Rupees in '000)-=-maaeae-
Operating Cashflows
(a) Underwriting activities
[Msurance pramium recesivad 2na.ns8 1EO0ES
Reinswance recowvery 80,507 24978
Claims paid (627,622 (528442
Commission paid (462 808) [417197)
Marketing and administrabive expensas pad (734 063) [BO7.423)
Net cash used in underwriting activities 385,062 [17.265]
(b] Other operating activities
Income tax paid [24,244] [28.204]
ther operating payments [M.138) [11,290]
Gratuity paid (2,833 (2571
Cther operating receipts 221639 15,169
Loans seeurad against ife insurance policies - repayments received 268 285
Met cash flow used in other aperating activities (15,784] (25,637
Total cash used in all operating sctivities 369,278 [EEECE]
Investment activities
Profit received 279,005 244,303
Dividend receed 2758 28,267
Payment far investments [8,513.535) (5,288 784]
Proceeds from investments 7,838953 6587739
Addition to proparty and eguispmant [11,750) (5,813)
Proceeds from sale of property and equioment 182 1470
Total cash used in investing activities {504,377 [137,624]
Financing activities
Advance received against aquity 100,000 200.000
Total cash generated from financing activites 100,000 200,000
Met increase in cash and cash eguivalents [as,093) 25480
Cash and cash aqulvalents at beginning of year 280,005 254525
Cash and eash agquivalants at end of ysar 18 244 808 280,005
Recencillation ta profit and loss account
Operating cash flows 389,278 {42,295
Dapracighon e¥panss (8,328) (1427
Amortization expenss on intangible assets - (121
Depreciation expenss on right of use asset [14,084) 12 485]
Profit on disposal of property and equipment 72 287
Profit on disposal of investments 92130 7132
Crvidend and cther mvestmant income 235,490 ZBE5T3
[Dacreasel ) Increase in assets ather than cash [34,397) EA32
lincreass) in mabilities other than borrowings 686 638) 402,088
Met Farr value gamy llosses) on Arancisl assets st far value through peofit or loss 1,588 225
Profit { [loss] after taxation 15,123 [165 2401

The annexed notes from 11to 57form an integral part of these financial statemants

Vo b

Chief Executive Officer  Chief Financial Officer

y énirﬁ' Directar

Chairman
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

1.

EH|

12

21

LEGAL, STATUS AND MATURE OF BUSINESS

&skari | ife 2ssurance Company Limited [the Company) wes incorporated in Pekistan on &ugust 18, 1992
a5 2 public Imited company wnder the repeaied Companies Orainance, 1984 (replaced by Companies Aot
2077 Its shares are quoted an Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company commenced life insurance operations
an February 22, 1993 after registration with Controller of Insurance on February 14, 1993 The address of
its registered and principal office are 8th Floar, 2rmy Welfare Trust, £WT Plaza, The Mall, Rawalpindi and
Tith Floar, Emerald Tower, Plot No, G-19, Black 5, KD Improvement Scheme Mo, Clifton, Karachi respectively
The mejor sharehalding In the Company was taken cver by 4rmy Welfare Trust on October 27, 2077 The
geographical locations other than stated above are as under

Karachi Regional Development Centre: Showroom 4-5, Zubalda Garden Ground Floor, Near 4wami Markaz,
KMEHS Main Shahrah e Faisal, Karach

Lahore Regioral Development Center Piot # 524, Block-15, Sector BT, Quaid-e-Azam Town Scheme,
College Roed, Lahore

Army Welfare Trust as a Holding Company holds 86 65% (2023 BE 55%] shares of the Company,.

The Company, is engaged in [ife Insurance and window family takaful business inciuding ordinany Ife business
and accidental and health business.

In eccomance with the requirement of Insurance Ordinance, 2000 the Company has established a Shareholder
Fund and separate Statutcny Funds in respect of each class of its life insurance business. The Statutorny
Funds established by the Company, in accordance with the advice of Appointed Actuary are as follow

Ordinary Life
Universal Life
Accidenta and Health

The Company commenced the Window Takaful Operations in 2019, Company's Board of Directors in its
meeting held on October 24, 2018 approved the contribution of seed money of Rs. SO million from share
holder's fund for the commencement of operation. The Windaw Takaful Cperation Is also approved by SECP
and Campeany has elso established Individual Family Takaful and Group Family Takafu! Funds

BASIS FOR PRESENTATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan, 8pproved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reparting
Standards (IFRS) issued by the Intermational Lcoounting Standards Board as are notified under the Companies
Lot 2077 and Insurance fccounting Regulations, 20177 provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies ¢t 2077 the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and Insurance Rules, 2077 and the Takaful Rules,
2012 In case requirements differ | the pravisicns or directives of the Companies 2ct 2077, Insurance
Ordinance, 2000, Insurance 2ccounting Regulations 2077 and Insurance Rules, 20717 and Takaful Rules,
2072 shal prevall

2.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing accounting standards that have become effective

during the year

The new standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards which are
mandatory for accounting periods which began on January 07, 2024 However, these do not have any
significant impact on the company's financial statements
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2.3 Standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards in Pakistan that are
not yet effective during the year

The new standards, certain amendments and Interpretations that are mandatory for accounting perind
begnning cn or after danuary 071, 2025,

Effective Date

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments With IFRS 17
IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts 1st January, 2026

2.4 Standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting standards that are effective but not relevant

Trere are certain other amendments in standard and interpretations that are mandatory for the Company's
acounting pericds beginning on ar after Junuary 7, 2024 but are considered not o be relevent or will not
nave any significant effects on the Company's operguons and therefore not stated in these Tinancia!
statements,

2.5 Temporary exemption from application of IFRS 9

IFRS S ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment (effective for period ending on or after June 30, 2013)
reglaces the existing guidance in |AS 33 Financial Instruments: Recagnition and Measuremant FRS S
includes revised guidance on the ciessification and measurernant of financial instruments, 8 new expected
credit loss model for caleulating impairment on financial assets and new general hedge accounting
requirements. It has also camed forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial iInsTuments
from 185 39

Further, IFRS 4 provides two alternative options in relation to application of IFRS 9 for entities issuing
conracts within the scope of IFRS 4, notably & temporary exermption and an overlay approach The temporany
gxemption eriables eligible entities to defer the implamentation date of IFRS 8. The uverlay approach allows
an entity applying IFRS 3 from the effective date to remove from the profit and loss account the effects
of some of the accounting mismatches that may coeur from applying IFRS 9 before IFRS 17 is apolied.
The Company has adopted the temparary exemption xhich allows the Company to defer the application
of FRS 9

Ag an insurence company, the management has opted temporary exemption from the appication of IFRS
9 as allowed by the International Standards Board (|ASB] for entites whose activities are predominantly
connected with insurance.

3 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain
financial assets and liabiites which are stated at fair value or amcrtized cost as apolicable.

4 FUNCTIOMAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

Trese financial statemerts are prasentad in Paldstan Rupees [rounded upto thousand] which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency

5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

Tre material accounting policies acopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been applied consistently to all years presented except as stated otherwise.
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5.1 Statutory funds

The Company maintains statutony funds for Ordinary Life, Universal Life and Accident and Health. Assets
liabilities, revenues and expenses are recorded in the fund, if referable or, on the basis of actuanal acvice if
not referalie. Other assets. lisbilities. revenue and expenses are aliocated to shareholders' funds. Policyholders
lizbilities nave been included n statutony funds on the basis of actuana! valuation carmied out by The appointed
actuary of the Campany on the financial position date as required by Section 50 of the Insurance Ordinance,
2000. A capital transfer provided to statutory funds by the shareholders' funds is recorded as 2 reduction
in the shareholders’ eauity

5.2 Property and equipment

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. if any, Depreciation is calculated
on the swaight line method at retes menticned in note &

Depreciation on all assets available for use curing the year is charged fram the month of acquisition / addition
to and no depreciation wil be chargad in the month of disposal / deleticn When parts of an item of assat
have different useful lives they are accounted for as separate items in property and equipment

Subsequent costs are included in the assets' carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cast of the item can be measured reliably. Mormal repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit and lass account as and when incurred However, major repeirs and renewals are capitalized.

Depreciation rates and methicd are reviewed at financial position date and adjusted, if reguired.

Gains or lnsses on disposal of property and eguipment are determined by comparing proceeds with the
carmying amount These are included in the profit and loss acoount

5.3 Intangible asset

Inanaible assets are stated at cost less accumuiated amortization and any impairment losses. Amartizaton
s charged over the estmated vseful Ife of the asseton a sustamatic bas's applying the straght line method
at the rates specified in note 10 to the financial staternents. The estmate of useful life and amortization
method are reviewed at the end of each financial year with the effect of any ehanges in estmate being
accounted for prospectively.

Thie amortizaticn s charged fram the morth in which asset is avaiisble far use and no amortization is charged
in which that asset is disposed off

5.4 Right of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease e the date the
underlying asset is avaiable for usel Right-of-use assets is initially measured based on the initial amaount
of the lzase liability adustad for any lease payments made at or before the commencemeant date plus any
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle The right of use asset is depreciated on
straight fine method over the lease term as this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of
censumotion of the future economic benefits

5.5 Lease Liability
The lease liability is initially measured at present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the

commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined the Kibcr rate spplied.
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5.6.2

2.7

Types of Insurance contracts/Window Takaful Operations
Insurance contracts
Insurance contracts represent contracts with poficy holders and reinsurers.

Those contracts where the Company [the insurer] accepts significant insurance risk from ancther party
{the poiicyhiolder) bu agreeing to compensate the polcyholders i a specifed uncertain future event (the
insured event) adversely affects the poiicyholders.

Those insurance contracts that are issued by cne insurer (the reinsurer] to compensate another insurer
{the cedant) for losses on one or mare contracts issued by the cedant are reinsurance contracts,

The Company enters into insurance contracts with policuhclders which are divided into following two
major categories:

Group Insurance contracts

The Company offers group [ife and group health to its clients, The risk underwritten is mainly death,
hospitalization and disabilitg, The group insurance contracts are issued typically on yearly renewable
term basis.

Individual Insurance Contracts

Individual life investment linked policies are regular life policies, where policy value is determined as per
the underlying assets' value, Various types of riders [Accidental Death, Family Income Benefit etc) are
alse scld along with the basic policies

Family Takaful Contracts

The Company offers Family Takaful Contracts. Family Takaful Contract is an arrangement which rests
an key Shariah principles of mutual cooperation, solidanity and well being of @ commurnity, and is based
an the principles of Wakala Waaf Mcdel. Under a Takaful arrangement, individuals come together and
contribute towards the common ohjective of protecting each other against financial losses by sharing
the risk on the basis of mutual assstance. The obligation of Waaf for Wagf participants' lizbilities is
limited tc the amount available in the Wagf fund. In case there is a deficit in the Waaf Fund, the Window
Takaful Operator shall grant an interest free loan [Qard-e-Hasna) 1o make good the deficit The loan shall
be repayable from the future surpluses generated in the Waaof Fund, without any excess of the actual
amount given to [t. Repayment of Qard-e-Hasna shall receive orionity over surplus distribution T
Participants from the Wagf Fund. Tne detai'ed disclosures of window takafil cperations are presented
innute 471

Group family takaful

The Group Family Takaful contracts are issued typically on yearly rerewatle term basis. The Company
uffers group tarm life and group credit plans to its participants,

Individuals family takaful contracts

The Company offers individual Takaful Plans which provide Shariah Compliant financial protection and
Investment venicle to individual partic parits. These plans carry cash value to the participants to direct
their investment related cortributions based on their risk / return objectives The investment risk is
bome by the participants.

Policyholders' liabilities / Technical Reserves

Policyhalders’ lizbilties including [BNR are stated at a value determined by the appointed actuary through
an actuana valuation / advice carried cut at each financial position date, in accordance with section
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50 of the Irsurance Ordinance, 2000, [n determining the value both acquired policy values as well as
estmated values which will be payable against risks which the Company underwrites are considered
The basis used are applied consistently from year to year. Caleulation for premium deficiency reserve
and claims incurred but not reported ﬁENF{i is calculated by the appunted actuary on the basis of
assLmptions that the claim pattern will Tollow the histoncal trend experience.

Maortality, Morbidity and Interest Bases adopted

SECP vide its circular 17/2013 dated September 13, 2012 has stipuisted that SLIC (2007-05) Individual
Life Mortality Tebie published by Pakistan Society of Actuaries be used as the minimum valuation basis
prescribed under SECP's notification SR.O 16(1)/20712. Atest was previously conducted to compare the
existing valuation basis ie. EFU [1967-88] mortelity table with the minimum veluation basis SLIC
(20C1-05] for the relevant reserves. The test revesled that the existing valuation besis was mors prudsnt
than the minimum valuation basis and therefore it was considersed 1o be more apprograte o continue
with the existing valuation basis

The rate of discount was taken as 2.75% in line with the requirements under SECF's notficaton SRO
16[1)/2012, for determining reserves of traditional products and supplemantary coverage. Any differential
between the assumed rate and the acwual rete Is intended to be available to the Company for meeting
ts administrative e<penses

The general principies adopted 0 the actuarial valuation to estimate policyhalders' liablities as at
December 31, 2024 are as follows

al \Universal Policies: The liability for universal life business aaes caloulated by summing up individual
mathematical reserves of the policies, The mathematical reserves as at the valuation date were
caloulated inglvidually 'n sccordance with the basis outlined in the policy document, LIC [1584-98)
Martality teble is used as the basis of deducting maortality charges. Suitable provision were made
forthe unexpired mortality charges, expense charges. unexpired link charges and investment income
10 be credited cn.each policy account In respect of the policy anniversary date of the said calendar
year uptn the valugtion date

bl Group Policies The liability in respect of group life nsurance and riders of all types, was set using
the uneamed premium method. Uneamed premium reserve is held for that particn of premium which
has not yet accrued at the balance sheet date. Due priovision was made for the claims incurred but
not reparted IBNR)

¢l Individual Conventional Life Policies The liability under individual corventional life assurances was
calculated by deducting from the present value of the sums assured, ninety percent of the present
value of the net premiums. Net premiums were calculated under the modified preliminary term
method, to be the level net premiums on the valuation basis plus adustments to allow for the first
year expenses at 5% of net premiums for each year of the premium paying term leg. 50% for the
term of 10 years). limited to 100% for & term of 20 years or mare, SLIC [20071-05) Mortality Table
and valuation interest rate of 375% were used for valuation of liabilities. As at the balance sheet
date [valuation datel all conventional pelicies are either paid-up or are in benefit stage where the
premiums have been ceased

dl Foruniversal life palices unearned premium reserves has been calculated for mortaliny charges only

gl Technical Reserves- Takaful Technical Reserves are valued at a value determined by the appainted
actuany through an actuarial valuation carried out at the statement of Financlal Position date, in
accordance with section 50 of the Insurance Crdinance 2000,

Claims provision & IBNR

al Proyisions have been made in respect of all intimated ciaims, Most ¢laims require lump sum pagmernts,
and reserves have been maintained in each Statutory Fund, where applicable.
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bl Adeqguate reserves have also been maintained for Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR] claims, The
IBNR is determiried based on chain ladder methed that analyses the time lag between the claim
occurrence date and claim reported date from the Companu's own experience.

Premium deficiency reserve

The Company is reguired as per Insurance Rules, 2077 and IFRS-4, to maintain a provision in respect
of premium deficiency for the class of business whers the unearmed premium reserve is not adeguats
to meet the expected future lishility, after reinsurance, from claims end cther expenses, ncluding
reinsurance expenses commissions and ather undenwriting expenses, expetted to be incurred afier the
financial position date in respect of policies in that class of business at the financial postion date. The
movement in the premium deficiency reserve is recarded as en expense and the same shall be recaognized
as a lisbility

Liability adequacy test

41 each financial position date, liability adequacy Tests are perfurmed to ensure the adequacy of the
contract liabilities. &ny deficiency Is immediately charged to profit and loss account initially by writing
off the deferred policy acauisition costs, if any, and by subseguently establishing a provision for losses
arising from liability adequacy tests.

Relnsurance/Retakaful contracts held

Conventional

Reinsurance premiums are recognized at the same time when the premium income is recognized itis
measured in line with the terms and conditon of the reinsurance treaties

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due 1o reinsurance companies. Reinsurance liabilites are
estimated in a manner consistent with the related reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets represent
balances due from reinsurance companies which are stated on the basis of amounts receivable under
the respective contract after considering any impairment in the value of such assets

Reinsurance assets are not offset against related insurance liabilities. Income or expenses from
reinsurance contract are not offset against expenses cor income from releted insurance assets as
required by Insurance Ordinance, 2000

Retakaful

Retakaful contribution

These contracts are entered into by the Company with retakaful operator under which the "Wagf Fund®
cedes the takaful risk assumed during normal course of its business and according to which Wagf is
compenseted for losses on contracts issued by it are clessified as retskeful contracts held.

Retakaful contribution is recorded at the time the retakeful is ceded  Surpius from retakeful operator
is recognised in the profit and loss account

Retakaful expenses

Retakaful expenses are recogrized as a liability in accordance with the pattern of recognition of related
contribution

Retakaful assets and liabilities

Retakafl| assets represent balances due from retakaful uperator Recoversble amounts are estmated
in & manner consistent with the associated retakafl treaties.
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Retakaful liabilities represent balances due to retakafu! operator, Amounts payable are caiculated in a
manner consistent with the asscciated retakafiul treaties.

Retakaful assets are not offset against related Retakaful lishilities. Income or expenses from retakaful
contract are rot offset against expensas or income from related PetakafUl contracts as required by the
Insurance Ordinance, 2000. Retaafl assets and liabilities are derecognized wvhen the contractual rights
are extinguished or expired.

Recelvables and payables related to insurance contract/Takaful contracts

Insurance

Receivables and payables are recognised when due These include amcunts due to and from agents
and pelicynolders.

Takatu

Recervables under Family takaful contracts are recognized wihen due - at the fair value of the consideration
receivable less provision for doubtful debts, if any. If there s cbjective evidence that the receivable is
impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the recervable sccord ngy and recognizes it
as impairment loss.

Loan secured against |ife insurance policies

Cash loan

The Company provides loans to their policuhalders on the basis of payment of premium for three
consecutive years, The maximum limit of disbursement is 80 percent of the surrender value and carries
a mark-up rate determined by the Company from time to tme.

Auto paid-up loan

These nen-interest bearing loans are available to poicyholders of the Company 1o the extent of cash
value built intheir policies.

Segment reporting

Insurance

Abusiness segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that
are supject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. The Company
accounts for segment reparting using the classes ar sub classes of busness [statutory funds) as
specified under the Insurance Ordinance 2000 and Insurance Rules, 2077

Based on its classification of Insurance contracts issued, the Company has three business segments

for reporting purposes namely universal life business, crdinary life business end accident and health
busingss.

The Company maintains Statutony Funds in respect of each class of its life insurance business. Assets
iabilites. revenues and expenses of the Company are referable to respective Statutory Funds, however,
wheraver, these are not referable to Satutory Funds, they, are allecated to the Shareholders’ Fund.

Apportionment of assets, lisbilities, revenues and expenses, wherever reguired, between the funds are
made on a fair and equitable basis and in accordance with the written advice of the Sppointed 4ctuary

Family Takaful

The individual family takeful business Segment pravides family takaful coverage to individuals Partcipants
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The Group Family Tekaful business segments provides Group family tekaful coverage to members/
empioyees of business emterprises, corporate entities and common interest groups under group family
takaful scheme cperated by the Company.

Actuarnal valuaton of family takaful business is required to be carried out annually at the balance sheet
date by appointed actuary. Policyholders’ lisbilities included in the statutery funds are hased on the
actuarial valuation carred uut by the Appointed Actuary as at Decemnber 31, 2024,

The Company reviews the basis of estimation used in respect of allocation of assets, liabilties, income
and expenses not referable to specific fund with the consultation of Company's spoointed actuary,

513 Cash and cash eguivalents

Farthe purpose of statemiert of cash flows, cash and cash eguivelents consists of cashin hand. stamps
in hang and deposits with banks 0 current and other sccounts.

514 Revenue recognition
Premiums

-Frst year individua! Ife premiums are recognzed crice the related policy have been issued and premiums
received.

-Rerewal premiums are recognized upon receipt of premium provided the policy is stll in force
-Premiums for group life grocp nealth business are recognized as and when due Peceivables under
insurarice contracts are recognized when due, at the fair velue of the consideration recelvable less
provision for doubtful debts, it any. If there s chjective evidence that the receivable is impaired the
Company reduces the carrying amount of the receivable accordingly and recognizes it as impairmernit
‘085

Imvestment income

-Mark-up ! interest income on bank deposits and government securities is recognized on time proportion
basis, using effective yield method.

-Interest on fixed income securities s recognized on time propartion basis using effective yigld method.

-Gain or loss on sale of iInvestments is neluded in profit and loss account for investments relsting o
sharehclders fund and statutory funds

-Revaluation gain/loss on investment held 'at fair value through profit and loss' is recognized as
income ‘sxpense in the comprehensive Income

-Revalugtion gain/loss on investment held ‘st available for salg' is recognized as income ‘expense in the
other comprehensive Income.

Dividend income

Divigend income is recognized when the Company's right to recelve the payment is established
Commission from re-insurer

Cemmission from re-insurer is recognized where such commission has contractually fallen due. when

the commissicn has not fallen due the amount acerued miay still be recognized, being calculated as if
the contractual pericd for its determination ended an the financial positon date

Annual Report 2024 {64}




Cantributions
Individual Life Family Takaful
First year, renewal and single contributions are recognized once the related policies are issued/renewed
against receipt of contnioution. Subsequent contrnbutons falling due under the certificate are recognised
If received and processed. Sing e contributions and top-up contributions are recognised nnce the related
Certificates are issued against the receipt of contibution.
Group Life Family Takaful
Group Femily contributions are recognized as and when due

515 Claims
Conventional Business
Claim evpenses are recognized on the date the insured event 1s Intmated
A liability for outstanding claims is recognized in respect of all claims incurred up to the financial posimon
date as =oon as relishle estimates of the claim amount can be made, The provisicn for claims “incurred
But Nat Reported IBNR) is included i policynolders lisbilties

Claim recoveries

Claims recoveries receivable from reinsurers are recognized as assets at the same time when the
corresponding claims are recorded in accordance with the termis of the re-insurance contracts.

Family Takaful Business

Claims expense include all claims accurring during the year, whether reported or not. intemal and extamal
claim handling costs that are directly refated to the processing and settlement cf claims and other
reccveries, and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous Ljears.

The outstanding claims liability includes amourts relating to unpaid reported claims and e<pected claims
settlement costs. Full provision is made for the estimated cost of claims incurred tll reporting date. The
provision for claims expenses relating to "Imcurred But Not Reported"(IBNR) is included in technical
(ESErVES.

576  Investments

All investments are initially recognized at cost. being the fair value of the consideration given and iIncludes
transaction costs except for investments designated at fair value through profit and loss.

Held to maturity

Irvestments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed rmaturity, where the Company has positive
riterit and ability to hold t maturity, are classified as Held-to-Maturity, Subsequently, these are measured
gt amortized cost using the effective interest method and taking into account any discount ar premium
on acquisiton,

Available-for-sale

Investments which are intended to be held for an indefinite period but may be sold in responsea tothe
nead for liquidity are clessified as evalabie-for-sale Subsegquently these investments are carmied at fair
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value Surplus / |deficit] on revaluation from ore reporting date to other is taken tw other comprehensive
ncome in the statement of comprehensive income. On derecognition or impairment of avalable-for-
sale investments the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other comprebensive iIncome is
transferred to profit and loss for period within statement of comprehersive income:

Investments at fair value through profit and loss account

Investments which are acquired principally for the purposes of generating profit from short term
fluctuation in price are clessified as heid-for-trading, Subsequent to initisl recognition, these are
rermeasured at fair value Gains or losses on investments on remeasurerment of thase investments arg
recogrized in profit and loss account

Creditars, accruals and provisions

Liabilities for creditors and other amounts payable are carmied at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in the future for the goods and / or services received, whether or not billed to
the Company

Prowvisions are recognized when the Company has a legsl or constructive obligation as a result ' of past
events, when itis probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and 2
reliable estimeate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed 2t each financial position date
and edjusted 1o reflect the currart estmate

Taxation
Current

Provyision for current ta«ation is based on taxable income at the current rate of taxation after taking imo
account rebates and 1ax credits available, if any In accordance wth the Income Tax Crdinance, 2007,

Defarred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporarny
differences at the financial position date between the tax bases and carriing amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purpeses. Deferred tax liabiiities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temparary differences. unused tax losses
and tax credits can be utilized,

Staff retirement benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an urfunded gratuity seheme for its permanent employeas. Employess who
nave completed six month of service are eligible for the scheme. The amourt of liability of each employee
at year end is computed by Actuary The person wha have completed six month of service in a2 year
is entited to one manth gross salary,

Accumulated compensated absences

The Company makes pravision in the financial statements for its liabiities wwards vested compensated
absences accumulated by its employees, esumated on the basis of actuanal valustion carried out by

the Company's actuary, on the basis of following cnteria :

al Earned leave encashment calculation purposes, entitements, will be calculated on monthly prorate
basig
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b The earned leave may be accumulated upto masimum upto maximum of 60 days.

¢l Any leave not availed will be carry forward to the next uear and accrued earmed leaves in excess of
30 days can be encashed on the option of the emplouee.

d) Maximum 30 leaves can be encashed

g) Maximum 15 days lsaves can be carry forward In one calendar year
Impairmant of assets

Financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that the financia
assetis impared In case of equity securities, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost s considered as an indicator that the security is impaired. If such indication
exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed 1o assess whether they are recorded in excess
of their recoverable amount Where carrying values exceed the respective recoveratle amount, assets
are written down 1o their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment [oss is recagnized In profit
and loss account. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs 1o sell and
valle in use.

Non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each financal positon date whether there s any indication that assets
except deferred tax assets may be impared, if such indication exists, the carrying amourts of such
gssets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of therr recoverable amount. Where
camying values exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are wiitten down o their recoverable
amounts and the resulting ‘'mpairment loss Is recognized in profitand loss account The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Dividend distribution

Unidend distribution to the Companiy's shareholders is recognized as a liabiliy in the Company's financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved.

Acquisition cost

These comprise commission and other costs incued in acquiring insurance pulices and include without
imitation all forms of remuneration pald to insurance agents.

These are recagnized as an expense in the earier of the financial year in which they are paid and financial
uear inwhich they become due and payable except those which zre directly referable to the acquisition
or renewal of specific cantracts that are recognised not |ater than the peried in which the premium to
which they refer is recognized as revenue

Management expenses

Marketing, managemerit and other expenses have been allocated to various statutery furds, expenses
that are not attributable to statutcry funds, charged te Sharehalders funds.

Takaful Operator's Fea

The sharehclders of the Company manage the Window Takaful operations for the participants Accordingly,
the Company is entitled to Takaful Operators Fee for the management of Window Takaful Operations
under the Waaf Fund, to meet its general and administrative expenses. Tha Takaful Operator's fae
termed as Wakala Fee, is recognized up front.
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Related party transactions

Transaction with releted parties are made at arm's length basis subiect to approval of the Board of
Directors.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and finanicial liabiites are recognized at the tme when the Company becomes a party
to the contractugl pravisions of the instrument. Financial assets are ge-recognised when the contractual
right to future cash flows from the asset expire or is transferred along with the risks and rewards of the
asset. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when cbligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on de-recegnition of the finarcial assets and lishilities is recogrised
in the statement of comprehensive income of the current perind The particular recognition methods
adopted are disclosed in the Individual policy stetements associsted with each item.

Off-setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilives are offset and the net amcunt is reported in the financial positon,
if thie Coempany has a legally enferceable night to set-off and ntends aither to settle on a net basis or
tix realize the asset and sette the liabiity simultanasusly,

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies ere accounted for in Pak Rupees [functicnal currency] at the rates
prevaling on the date of transaction. Manetary assets and liabilties denominated in foreign currencies
are transiated into Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the financial posttion data,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES
Use of critical accounting Judgments and estimates

The preperaticn of financial statements in conformity with the requirements of approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgmenit in the process of applying the Company's accounting
poiices. Estimates and Judgments are continually eveluated and are based on historic experience and
other factars, including expectatons of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, Revisions tu accounting estmates are recognized in the pericd in which the estimate
is revised and any future periods affected

Significant areas where assumptions and esimates were exercised in application of accounting policies,
othenwise that are disclosed in these financial statements, relate to-

Note
Property and equipment 52
Palicy holders' liabilites / Technical Reserves 5.7
Taxation S8
Staff retirement benefits 518
Impairment of firancial and non financigl assets 520

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

The company raised advance against equity of Rs. 100 million during the year which is considered o
be significant event for the purpose of financial statements

The revenue of the company increasaed from to Rs 16873 540 milion to Rs 2077672 milion during the
year [25%) which is considered to be sigrificart event for the purpose of financial statements
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

2024 Cost FAccumulated Depreciation Wit
en down
Asat Asat Asat | Charge Az gt vishie A at Rate
January | Additions | Disposals | December|| January | forthe | Disposals ”“‘;"h" Sickimbas ) %
01, 2024 312024 || 02024 | year F=1s pisieys
Rupess in "000
Deseription
Furmiture and flare WL730 1,330 [242] 15878 10,067 1816 (223) T6BO0 4.218 20
Offics 2od slectrical eguipment 8,381 164 [41] 8,504 5,916 852 [38) 6770 1,734 20
COMgiUter equipment 22,575 781 hvml 22876 17,554 2175 [toral 2078 B95S 33.33-50
Maotor wahices 517 2,385 - 2802 51 2B5 - 786 2908 20
Lezze improvements 18,170 - - 18,170 16,885 1,158 - 158,043 127 20
84,773 11,750 [1,334] 75129 _ 50533 2326 [1&?4] 57,985 17,144
2023 Cost Accumuleted Deprecietion
it tset || Asst | Chepe Y il
Janueny |4ddtons | [espesels  |December|| Jernuery | forthe | Dmposss |December EIW i Y 5
01, 2023 31,2023 || 0. 2023 | year I, 2023 ““E'zm“b;r - ’
H- Rupees in ‘0040 - —
Description
Furnitre and fixie 13788 547 Wran 7193 2874 maaT 4663 20
Uffice and electrical eguipment 8332 45 = B, 381 4,252 1664 = 5916 2465 20
Comgeter equipment 20,053 3542 [B20) 22875 15057 3002 [545] 17554 5421  3333-50
Motor vehices 3210 1107 [A8a0} 517 29=8 278 (2553] 51 & 20
Legse improsements 7996 174 . \|AD  1mEr4 36T : IEEES 1E8S 20
53380 5,813 l4420)  E47/3 42744 11427 [3238] 50,923 13,840
Dopreciation charge has boon allocated as Note 2024 2023
-—---Rupees in '"000----
ACquisition Bxpenses az 2773 3521
Marketing & administraton expenses 34 5553 7806
83,326 427
8.2 DETAILOF DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
B.2.7 Dispossl of property and equipment
2024
Description of Asset Cost 3;:‘; Bale Proceed ﬁ-::&l; Bumper Mode of disposal
-—---—-—-a--[ﬁlpaaah _'ﬂ-l}u]....._.“___
Computess 41 a8 189 91 | Varlous Aa per policy
Office Eguipments 1M 3 1 [2]] verlous Scrap
Futnitura and Ficturas 242 19 2 {17]] various Scrap
1,384 120 192 T2
RIGHT OF USE ASSETS
2024 Cost Accurmulated Depreciation
hsat | Written down
Asat Asat Asat Charge
January | Additons hI::d-Iﬁl i December|| January | forthe | Dleposals DE::;T'JE D::I::'l::r?‘l R::E
01, 2024 31,2024 || 01,2024 | year 2024 2024
Rupees in 'D0D
Description
Right to use se=ets 41,781 - - 41,191 2415 14,084 - 22489 18,692 2D0-33.33
2023 Cogt Accumuleted Deprecaton
Charge WriTen dowr
As i Ciaposals Mo A s . Akt value A at Ratz
Jaruary | Additicrs e Dacenber || Januany | forthe | Disposals | Decambear 5
01, 2023 el 31,2023 || 012023 | year 31,2023 D“z‘;‘;:‘a"
e el 1111111 - | e
Description
Righit o use assers 43728 32 EE8 0725 41780 3652 12488 [40.725] 3475 32778 20-32.33
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Disclosura relating to right of uss assets » tverage | Mumberof || Number of
Mumber of righs ot mlamagumr- fEMaIning| leases with || leases with
igs FEsets lmesad 9 lpase axtenson || teemination

term optinn optian
Wthin @
Ctfice Buiding 2 Years A Year 3 a
Depreciation charge has been alloceted as follows: Note 2024 2023
----- —Rupees "000----—
Acquiston expansss 33 - -
Markeung ard administration Sxpenses a4 14,083 2
14,083 12,488
INTANGIBLE ABSETS
2024 Cost Accumulztad Depreciztion
Az agt | Written down
Az at Agat Agat | Charge
: - ; ; December| Vakue Asat Rate
Description Jarwary | Additions | Disposals  |Decembar|| Janvary | forthe | Disposals Decembar 34, 5y
01, 2024 31,2024 || 02024 | year L) '
] 2024 2024
Rupeesin ‘000
Srnftweres 2598548 - EE!EE 2,998 - - 5’953 - 33,28
2023 Cost 1 Accumulated Dépecaton
At 4s=t | szt | Chamge Asat ""r:t“”f"‘“" s
Descrlption January | Additions | Disposais || December | Jenwery | forthe | Disposals |Cecember by Lﬁh.BZt"l u
a1, 2023 2023 |0 2023 usar 31,2023 DEDE'EDEI ;r
Rupees n o0
Scfhwsres 2936 - - 2856 2 984 2 - 2986 3333
INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY SECURITIES
2024 2023
Cost ""‘""‘“"[ oy 'esiment  Feivsiue  Cost o H""““f“’[,l ””n w  masimact Fai Vil L
S TP T 1 —
AVAILABLE FOR SALE
Related Party
Listed Shames
Epst Weat lnsurance Company Limited 281 343 524 281 173 454
Gthers
Listed Shams
Furat Camert Camgany Lmied 340 BE7 - 1007 347 269 - =)
0 G Khar Cement Company Limied 512 - [1a7} 315 512 - [Za) 232
Habib Bark Limited 1951 - =] 1221 1351 - [575] )
Granghary Irdustizs Lmited 1833 T8 . zam 1633 . {2i5a) &5
Milat Trector Limited T44 5 180 Fad -1-H - 1404
B ndustien Limited 350 72 - a4z 350 - e 248
Cisgar Qgetem Lired 0 48 150 1 an - 131
Packagss Limmed EER 161 - R 22 (1)) - 2120
A-Shansar Gorpargtian 78 - [58] 19 7B - [47) n
Fresianceampira Ergr: Pakstan Limsed 233 . {58l 288 323 el 245
Ferogenns Laboratarss Limted 1958 1,684 - BER2 1958 425 - 2383
saP Limied 103 &7 - 170 103 [33} - T
9,885 4,578 [a21] ] 2,085 14233 2038] EEE]
Mmrmart i actumu it i rosment |osses On avalabie for saie feestmerts B0ad 2023
semes Rupees 0000 o
Cpgring basnce (e 12864]
Crnga Tar the percd J yeser 1595 §35
Closing haeroe T [FLEER
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12 INVESTMEMNTS i GOVERKMENT SECURITIES

2024 2023
Effmctive Pringipal g
Mabianity Year ] Face Valu Carrying Value Effectwe™iel  Carping Velus
Wimhd {55) th:_gmum: [
Rupees in ‘D00
HELDTO MATURITY
W yaar Pebistan Inyestmant Boods E1-Apr-EE 2.19% 0o00 onMemnty 9,346 215% S.90
1 yaar Pelogtan Investmant Boods Fl-Apr-3E ROTR 22500  onMeturty F2.ERE b= R S 2280
3 yaar Pelogtan Investmart Boods 21-Fab-23 19.43% 33,200 an Maturty Bk 2342 2293%
2 gaar Pebogtan Investment Brods 0g-Dac-30 15.06% 42200 an Matunty 40,845 22 % 4067327
13 Moniths Tearury Bilg - - - an Maturty - aEdY w00
113 Manihs Traasury Bifs - - - on Matarty - Ear-u 145 T
{13 Maoriths Treasury Bils - - an Maturty - 92% 53857
113 Mgt Treasury Bils - - - on Matunty - FrER 34Tas
U3 Moniths Treasury Bils 20-Feb-25 12.25% 505  onMatunty Esm - .
113 Maniths Traasury Bils B-Mlar-25 LSS 168480  onMatunty 5343
113 Manths Treasury Bils B-Mar-2E A% 237720 onMatunty 232007 - .
06 Momths Treasery Bils - - - an Matarty - 2193% 55814
116 Months Traasury Bifs - . - an Matunty - 2138% MEAT?
15 Mprmns Treasury Bils Tdedun-2E .83% 158,000  anMaturty 150,857
{1& Momits Treasery Bils 0= Jul-28 1250% B4 a8 an Matumty Eo mad
oar BUP Syt bs . . - an Maturty - 22THE 24 067
T e BUP Bukubs - L - an Matunty - 2554 #2547
T i GUP Sylouks = " = an Maturty = 22ER% 408
T Y BOP Suieyks: - E - an Maturty - 2276 BoaT
T e GOP Sukuks: = B - on Matunty - 2ATRL SO oBE
1 Wigar GOP Subyhs 20-Cct-258 T.75% 34,500 an Maturty 31526
T Ve GOP Suiaks D5-Den-28 T.00% 55,000 an Matry 48,828
B Years BOP Sukuhs 21-0ce-27 13.25% 45,000 an Matinty 45,326
3 Yesrs FOP Bukuks 26-hin-26 10.80% B.000 on Maturity B.827 - -
5 Years BOP Sukuks - - - an Moty - 21B4% 330245
5 Years GOP Sukubs - - an Mztumty - 21Bd% a7
5 Yeo's GOP Scifuhs - - - an Matuimty - 2AEMN 4,EB4.
5 Yeas GOP SUsuks - = an Maturity = 226 28751
5 Yeaw BOP Sukuks - - an Maturity = 2267% w7
3 YeaE GOP SUsuks - - - an Matuity - 2300 @ 5RT
5 Yeas GOP Sudike OB-Dec-25 12725 43,600 an Maturty 43,645 - -
5 Yeas BOP Sukuks D-Oct-28 1413% T4.200 an Maturity T4,362 -
3 Veans BOP Sukuks 28-0ct-26 055 88,200 an Maturity 68,248 =
3 Yeas BOP Sukuks DE-May-25 12T72% F,EOD ah Matulity 361,507 -
5 Veas DOP Sukuks E28-Jul-25 17.84% 168,430 ah Matiity 169,383 -
5 Weae: BOP Sukuks £8-Jul-25 17.80% 25,600 an Matunity 25,747 -
5 Yeas BOP SuRuks Z8-Jul-23 172d% &3,200 an Maturty B3 757 =
3 e e GOR SURUkE 15-Dec-28 10.60% TI6,EDD an Mty TIBA408
LA, 26D 18 1EE 1241127
13 INVESTMENTS BN MUTUAL FUNDS
2024 2033
Revaluznon ’ Ravalgton
Cost Surpius Carrying Ysiue Cast Surmhie Camgrg Vaie
Rupoas m ‘000
AVARLABLE FOR SALE
Related Party
AWT Islamic incoma Fund 96,736 i BE413
Dahars
KB iglam morgy merket fund - - 145 18 &
Aamrg iseme maney market furd = a 2 8583 ERE3
Ahamre IpEme ingome Furd 704 1 7,035
Alramra Govermment Sacurites Fen-1 80,528 28 BO,653
AR amc cesh fung E 1B 1B EE40 G R40
ABL lglame Bnvargign Plan-| B4, 2656 136 B4,402 -
Altaah islamic morara amosn fund . g 5
MBS isEme daly diadend hund 5 - B B3 8705
AL-Ameen 'wamic incomg Fund 4B 165 13 46,778 -
MER Islamic Goverrmant Secueries Plan- 1 54,189 13 o4 502 -
wemzan Ragana Amdani Ford L 4 d -
#oeren Daly Incame Furd i 4 -
Faysa [slamic Cash Fund - 10 A0 -
RBP Francw’ Sector Incomme Furd & - 8 - -
KB Income Dpporturvy Furd ] = B £ = =
KBP [slaenic meoma Fund - - 10Gcco 53 10058
HBL slanig Moy ekt Ford - - - 4542 a8 4 B50
HBL |skamic incoma Fuid - - - 22080 B2 22,1528
Merren Sovaiegn Fuad B BT 141 85,760 83630 2047 B3G7T
Feysa |skmic Sacaragn Fusd EBO&02 Tz 0874 Bl1457 1520 82877
Al Ameer samic Soversgn Furd - - - 36,753 582 37265
#CB Pakistan Sovereign Fand - - - 16600 &l TG BEE
Affeeh islamic Sovereign Plan- i ] 2 1w - = =
Alfelah Ielamic Savensige Plas || arass - S7555 A48 430 TT.BES
T Bassad 524 B34468 EECELE] Z500 EX RN
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14

141

14.2

INSURANCE / REINSURAMNCE RECEIVABLES

Due from insurance contract holders
Due from other insurers  reinsurers

Due from related parties

Holding company
Army Welfare Trust

Associate

Askari Guards Pvt Lid

MEDASK

Resl Estate

Army Welfare Sugar Mills

Askari Travel & Taurs

AWT Housing Scheme Karachi

Askar Fuels

Askari Woolen Mills

Asleari Development Holding Pvt Limited
AWT Investmeant

Askari Chartered Aviation Services [ACS)
Fauji Security Services

fgkari Farms & Seeds

Blue lagoon

Askari lagoon

Askari Enterprises

Askari Flying Academy

Askari Shoes

Askari Service Travels

Maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year

2024

2023

=e===== Rupees in '000 --==---

Mame of related party

Army Welfare Trust

Askari Guards Pt Ltd

MEDASH

Real Estate

AWT Housing Scheme Karachi

Askari Fuels

Askari Woolen Mills

Askari Devalopment Holding Pyt Limited
AWT Investrment

Askari Chartered Aviation Services (ACS)
Fauji Security Services

Blue lagoon

Askari lagoon

Armiy YWetfare Sugar Mills

Askari Travel & Tours

Askar Farms & Seads

Askar| Enterprises

Askari Flying Acaderny

Askari Shoes

Askari Service Travels

53,51 29,081
s 37733
53511 66814
1,656 242
983 5227
B8 g2
1,080 54
1949 B
122 15
2 2
571 ik
291 -
465 351
37 25
88 2
1,029 4
180 -
364 .
28 28
197 2
91
393 -
il -
19,715 6,090
1696 242
983 5227
68 52
1,090 54
2 2
Y| 1
291 -
465 381
37 25
88 2
11,029 4
364 5
28 28
1949 g
122 18
180 -
197 =
91 -
393 .
ral
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14.3 Age analysis of insurance recelvables from related parties

15

15.1
18

16.1

Amount past due
Mame of related party Pffgt:;e Pastdue 90 | Total gross
days amount due
days
Army Welfare Trust 1455 241 1696
Askari Guards Pvt Ltd 983 - 883
MEDASK 15 53 68
Real Estate 1.038 54 1,080
AWT Housing Scheme Karachi - 2 2
Askari Fuels 570 1 57
Askar Woolen Mills 291 - 291
Askari Developmant Holding Pvt Limited 84 38 485
AWT Investment - a7 37
Askari Chartered Avistion Services [ACS) 86 2 88
Fauji Security Services 7,013 16 7,029
Blue lagoon 364 - 364
Askari lagoon - 28 28
Army Welfare Sugar Mills 1,943 B 1,949
Askari Travel B Tours 106 16 122
Askari Farms & Seads 180 - 180
Askar Enterprizes 197 - 197
Askari Flying Academy 91 - /;
Askari Shoes 393 - 393
Askari Service Travels Fil - 71
18878 837 18,715
2024 2023
MNote  ------- Rupeesin '000 -------
OTHER LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
Accrued investmeant income 35609 23522
Security and cther deposit 26,746 20441
Advance to vendors 4,354 2294
Loans to employses 157 7,079 4833
—t3J88 50590
This represent interest free loans provided to employeas repauable within 12 months,
DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred tax debits arising in respect of:
Property and Equipment & Intangibles 4,891 9184
Lease Liability 5689 5,021
Retirement Benefit Obligation 22,325 15,665
Tax Losses 2,609 5,853
35514 39,733
Defered tax credits arising in respect of:
Right of Use Assets (5,420) (9,505]
30,054 30,228

During the period the amourtt of deferred tax asset estimated by the company is Rs. 30.084 million (2023
Rs. 30.228 million], the company has not recorded deferred tax asset in the current year on prudence
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17

18

181

18.2
19
191

19.2

20

2024 2028

=eeeen- Rupees in '000 -------
PREPAYMENTS
Prepaid expenses 5514 6,953
5514 B,Sad
CASH AND BANK
- Stamps in hand 3.254 g06
Cash and bank
- Current account 112,691 121485
- Saving account 1822 128,961 157614
— 244806 280005

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank 244 250,005
It carries mark-up / interest a1 the rate of 6.2% t0 20.5% per 2nnum [2023: 5.5% to 20.5% per annum).

SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL
2024 2023 2024 =023
_ Number of shares Crdinary shares of R=. 10 each ------- Rupees in '000 -------
300,000,000 200,000,000 As at beginning of the year 3,000,000 2000920
- - Increassed during the year - -
~ 300,000,600 — 200,000,000 As at end of the year ~ 5,000,000 — 2000000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL

2024 2023
Mumber of shares

Ordinary shares of Re.10 each issued for

150,172,014 150,172,014 As at beginning of the year 1,501,720 1501720
- - lssued during the year - -
150,172,014 150172014 &5 at end of the year 1501720 1501720

Ag gt December 31, 2024, 100,083 million shares - 66.65% shares (December 31, 2023 100.082 millicn shares -
BE.65% shares! were held by Trustees of Army Walfare Trust,

2024 2023
Note  ===---- Rupees in ‘000 -------

INSURAMNCE LIABILITIES
Reported nutstanding claims [including claims in payment] 201 131,425 156,285
Incurred but not reported claims {IBNR) 202 19,886 20,568
Investment componant of account value policies / certficates 203 1,621,705 1177450
Lizbilties under individual conventional insurance ftakaful contracts 204 3,851 2802
Lizbilites under group insurance / group family takaful contracts [other 205 6 521 gqca
than investrnent linked) i *
Cther insurance [/ family takaful liabifities 206 458600 27208

1697563 1238079
1,828,988 1394268
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2024 2023
------- Rupees in '000 -------
20.1 Reported outstanding claims

Gross of Reinsurance /Re takatul

Payable within one year 215,961 306749
Payable over a perlod of time exceeding one year 18,782 8318
238,743 315,068

Recoverable from Reinsurance [ Re takaful

Receivable withir one year (90,065) (151,483)

Receivable over a period of time exceeding one year [17,.253] [7.286)

(107,318} (158,779)

Met reported outstanding ciaims 131,425 156,289
20.2 Incurred but not reported claims

Gross of reinsurance 65,207 54,556

Reinsurance recoveries (45,321) (43330)

Met of reinsurance 19,886 20,566
20.3 Investment component of universal life and account

value policies / certificates

Investment component of account value policies 1,621,705 1177450
20.4 Liabilities under individual conventional insurance / takaful contracts

Gross of reinsurance 5,348 33390

Reinsurance credit (1,497) (488)

Met of reinsurance 3,851 2802
20.5 Lisbilities under Group Insurance / Group Family Takaful Contracts (other

than Investment linked)

Gross of reinsurance 36,207 48985

Reinsurance credit [29,688]) (40,032)

Met of reinsuranca 5,521 9953
20,6 Other insurance liabilities

Gross of reinsurance 45600 27812

Reinsurance recoveries - (504)

45,600 27208

21 UNMCLAIMED INSURAMCE BEMEFITS

Dec-24 1to 6 Tto12 13to24 25to36 Beyond 36 Total

Months Maonths Maonths Months Months
Unclaimed maturity benefits 14.809 35957 8,050 4488 43260 72,664

Unclaimed death benefits 300 1ET 14 40 12,042 12,563
Claims Not Encashed 8,258 218 167 272 1580 10,487
Other unclaimed benefits 197 - 200 233 10134 10,764
Total 23,662 4,342 6,425 5033 67016 106478
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Dec-23 1t B 7to12 13tc24 25t036 Beyond 36

Months Months Months Months Months s
Unclaimed maturity benefits 18,370 33219 5345 4483 40123 71620
Unclaimed death benefits 156 ao 360 415 1,878 12,838
Claims Not Encashed 5,625 g5 233 156 1,508 7,617
Other unclaimed benefits 1,540 M 51 756 12,186 15,104
Total 25,691 3,555 6,449 5790 65695 107180

22 RETIREMENT BEMEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees, Employees who have
completed six month of service are eligible for the scheme The amaount of liability of each employee at year
end is computed by Actuary The person who have completed six month of service In & year is entitlad to
one annual gross salary,

2024 2023
------- Rupeesin '000 -------
2271 Movement in liability recognised in
Statement financial position
Presant value of defined benefit obligation 76,982 24,018
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net Liability in Statement of Financial Position 76,982 54018
22.2 Movement in liability recognised in
Statement of financial position
At the beginming of year 54,018 35421
Add: charge for the year 24.422 18357
Less: payment to cutgoing employess [2.839) [2571
Less: payable to outgoing employees (260) (552)
Less: tatal amount of reimeasurements recognised in OC 1,641 3,363
At the end of the year 76,982 54018
22.3 Charge has been allocated as follows:
Acquisition expenses 2688 10e2
Marketing and administration axpanses 23,375 20658
Uiher comprehensive income (1,841) (3,363
24,422 18,357
224 Analysis of present value of defined benefit obligation
Split by vested/ non vested
‘ested Benefits 76,982 54018
Split by benefits earned to date
Accumulated benefit chligation 76,742 15189
Amounts attributable to future salary increases 240 38,829
76,982 54,078
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2024 2023
------- Rupees in'000 -------
Expected distribution of timing of benefit payments time in years
Distribution of timing of benefit payments (time in the periods)

Within firet year from the end of financial year 3,752 2,850
Within second year from the end of financial year 4,568 3,696
Within third year from the end of financial year 5,564 4,551
Within fourth year from the end of financial year 15,149 5,600
Within fifth year from the end of financial year 7.819 15,519
Within sixth to ten years from the end of financial year 168,570 125688

Sensitivity analysis on significant actuarial assumptions on
present value of defined benefit obligation

Discount rate +0.50% 73,281 51,347
Discount rate -0.50% 80,9639 56,8393
Long term salary increases +0.50% 81130 57,003
Long term salary increases -0.50% 73,102 51223

Maturity Profile of present value of defined benefit obligation
Weighted average duration of the present value of defined benefit

obligation {time in years) 9.97 10.26

22.5 Details of employees valued
Total number of employses 102 a7
Total monthly salary 16,699 13,855

226 Principal actuarial assumptions

The fallowing significant assumptions were used in the valuation carried out at the staterment of financial
Dosition date :

2024 2023
Estimated rate of increase In salary of the employaes 12.25% 14.75%
Discount rate 12.25% 14.75%
Rates of employse wrnover Moderate Maderate
Demographic Assumptions
Mortality rates (for death in sLic(2001-  sSLIC (2001-
service] 05)-1 05]-1

The mortality rates are provided by the State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan [SLIC).

227 Profit and Loss for the year December 31, 2025
Rupees in 00C
Service cost
Currert sarvice cost 18,353
Past service cost -

18,353
Met interest cost
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 10,299
Interest income on planned assets

10,299
Cost recognised in profit and loss for the year 28,652
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23

24

241

25

251

INSURAMNCE / REINSURANCE PAYABLES

Due to other insurers / reinsurers

Due to other insurance contract holders

OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS
Agert commission padable

Accrued expenses

Tax liabilities

Other lishilities

Compensated absence payable

2024 2023

Mote  ------- Rupeesin '000 -------
162,686 42476

2,577 3523

165,263 46,404

77,368 48,5571

22,573 21,684

12,576 10,096

27,479 16,860

241 10,698 9,603
150,694 104,834

This includes provision made against accumulated compensation absences on the basis of actuarial

assumptions taken by Campany's actuary.

The rnain assumptions used for actuarial valuation are as under ;

Principal Actuarial Assumption
Discount factor used per annum

Expected increase in gligible pay per annum

Movement in Payable to Accumulated Compensation Absences

Opening Balance
[Reversal] / addition during the year
Closing Balance

LEASE LIABILITY AGAINST RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

Lease liability represented by

14.75% 14.75%
14.75% 14.75%
8603 7,580
1,085 2,043
10,698 85603
2024 2023

w====== Rupees in ‘000 -------

Mon current portion 7.647 489
Current portion 11,970 18617
19,617 31,106
The lease liability 15 discounted using incremental rate of borrowing.
2024 2023
Present Value  Financial Minimum Present Value  Financial Iinimum
of Minimum Charges for Leaze of Minimum  Charges for Lease
Lease the future Payment Lease the future Pauyment
——————— —Rupeesin '000————- ~————Rupees In Q00 —-——
Mot Latar than one year N7 3587 15557 18817 5467 26,084
Latar than ane year but not i
tater than five years 7847 502 5143 T 485 4083 15578
Later than five ysars e =
19,617 4,083 23706 31,106 10,556 41,662
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261

26811

2613

COMTINGEMCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

There is pending adjudication besnng No 125/20712 before the Session Court, South, Karachi in respect
of 2 emploges who was previously working on contract basis at company's Hyderabad branch and
committed fraud, As the company is taken over by AWT (the buyer) it was agreed with the previous
management [the seller) that if any stage the Company or any of its director(s) become party, and as
such any lisbility is imposed by any court on the company or s directors) in this regard, the accrued
liability would be paid by the sellers t the cempany for onward paymenit to the affectees at earliest
The company will accordingly ensure timely and fair payment of liability,

That to guarantee the covenants made by the seller above and to fully indemnify the Buyer against
any lisbilitys loss the Sellers have furnished in favour of the buyer an irrevocable and unconditional
Insurance Guarantee from 3 AA+ rated Insurance company, East West Insurance Company Limited
bearing number EWL/HO/PB-009/01/2017 to an amount of PKRE 118467 millon. Further to this effect
a duly executed and notarized undertaking deted 13-07-2077 has also been furmished by the Selles
to the Federal Insurance Dmbudsman,

Pakistan Steel Mil had filed instant suit against East and West Life Assurance Company [the *EALA")
r respect of the claims of their employess amauniting to Bs, 4 millicn The claim bad been repudiatea
by the previous management on the grounds of delayed irtimation. In view of Company's legal consultant
the Company has a prima facie case and unfavourable cutcome is not expected

During the year 2013, Sindh Revenue Board [SRB) vide notification No. SRB 3-4/5/2019 dated May
8, 2019 extended the exemption on life insurance till June 30, 2019, With effect from July 1, 2015, Iife
ns.rarce has been made taxable at the rate of 3% on individual ife ard group [ife nsurance atthe rate
of 13%. Further, the Purjab Revenue Authority (PRA] also withdrew the exemption on life insurance
and made the same subjject to Punjab Sales Tax (PST). The Company collectively through the forum
of Insurance Associstion of Pakistan [AP) had filed a writ + constitutional petition in the Lahare High
Court (LHC] and in the High Court of Sindh [HCS) on September 28, 2012 and November 28, 2019
against PRA and SRE respectively

Arcording to the opinion provided by the legal advisor, the insurance premium does not fall under
definition of service rather an insurance palicy is a financial arrangement, which is in the nature of

crtingent contract and not 2 service Lpon which sales tax can be levied land that an insurance company
s not rendering a service). The petitions fled in the Punjab and Sindh High Courts also includes the
same grounds. It is-also the apinion of life insurance companies that a vast majority of premium received
from a policy holder, during the life of the policy, is in fact accounted for in the policyholders' investment
which cannat be termed as service

Further, subsequent to filling petiticn, the matters relating to sales tax on life insurance premium were
also discussed n the meeting of all the provincial tax authorities 12 SRB PRA BRA and reoresertatives
oflife insurance industry, where it was agreed to form a joint committee of the insurance representatives
to resalve these matters. Based on the above legal opinion and angeing discussions, the Company
consitlers it has a reasonable strong case on the merit in the constitutional petition and the writ petition
filed in the Honourable High Courts.

In the beginning cf 2025, the constitutional bench of the Sindh Hich Court dismissed the petitions after
summary hearing and directed the insurance comparnies to approach SREB for relief. 4s perthe lawyer,
the Bench did not consider the merts of the arguments. Further, the Bench did not record Insurance
Industry's main argument that the vires of the law have been challenged and thus, any relief or remedy
obtained from SRB will not be adeguate
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As per the lawyer, insurence is not a service upon which seles tax can be levied because insurance
Cormpary s not rendering a service rather, itis in the busness of entering intw contingent contracts.
Keeping this in view, and after considering lawyer's arguments, the Company has decided that ithas a
strong case The matter was discussed amang the [fe insurance companes in the merket. at the platform
of 1R 7t was collectively decided to file arn appeal in the Suprerne Court of Pakistan.

In view of the above the Company has not started invoicing ssles tax to it's customers. The emount
of sales tax nvolved is around Re, 224 3 millicn computed on the basis of risk based premium, as per
the advice of the legal advisor Moreover, based on legal view, sales tax cannot be levied as insurance
is Not @ service.

26714 During the year 2013, SECP has conducted the ant-money laundering audi, as a resuit of which SECP

imposed a penaty of Rs. 400,000, vide order No. ID/Enf EWLA20T/-297 ceted March 24, 2020 for

the non comphance made by the company. The company has fled an appeal against the said craer

before the &ppellate bench of SECP The company and s legal advisor is confident that any unfavourable
oUtCome is not expectad,

26715 Before acquisition of the East and wWest Life 8ssurance Campany (the 'EWLE" by &rmy Welfare Trust
{AWT), SECP had Impnsed penalty of Rs120,000/- and Rs. 200,000/~ on the EW & vide arder No.
EMO/Ent/EWLA 2016 14299 and order No: ID/Erf/EWLA2017/8348 respactively The appeals on the
said orders were filed before the Appellate bench of SECP by EwLA

The Appellate Bench of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pekistan disposed of Appeal Mo, 37
of 2076 an November 16, 2021 through Order dated November 16, 20271 The said order set aside the
Impunged order 1o the extent of penaity imposad on Charman, CED, and Directors of the Company.
whereas, Impunged Order was uphield and the appeasl was dismissed to the fing imposed on the Company.
The other appeal against is pending and the outcome is awaited.

26716 There is a case filed by the Nobel Hospital against the EWLA in leamed court, Lanare for the recovery
of health insurance bill amounting to Rs. 16 milion [approx.). After the acquisition, the Company s in
coordination with the relevant patties for the possible resolution of the case

2617 There is cutstanding petition filed by the Puniab Employees Social Security Institution [PESSI) against
EWLA in Insurance Tribunal, Lahore for the recovery of the gmup claims of their employees amounting
to R 118 milian [apprax). &fter the acquisition, the Company followed this case n the tibunal Subsequert:
e the year end the Insurance tribunal decided the case in favor of the petiticners. As per the Company's
lawyer, the Insurance Tribunal did not offer him an opportunity to argue his case However, the lawyer
i confidert that & higher court wil be more objective in ts approach The Company has filed an appeal
in the Lahore high court which has been accepted.

26718 4nncident was dscoverad whee en agent misappropriated a premium of Re 7 Milion from a prospective
customer. The Company took timely action and apprehended the agent The case was alsc reported
to the police The agent prowvided a written confession and submitted post-dated chegues for recovery
of the amount As of December 37, 2024, the Company has made significant recovery against the out-
standing amount The Company has taken a legal advisor on board to resclve the matter.

26.2 Commitments

ljora Commitment 2024 2023
------- Rupees in '000 =====--
Mot later than ane year 37,025 38,253
Later than one year and nat later than five years 94,325 714,289
131,350 152,548

Annual Report 2024 {80}




2024 2023
~~~~~~~ Rupees in '000 -------
27  NET INSURAMCE PREMIUM REVEMUE
Gross Premiums / Contributions
Regular Fremium / Contributions Individual Policies®

First year 623,404 473773
Second year renewal 310,767 302873
Subsaquent year renewal 348,703 205,355
Single premium / Contribution individual policies 217,889 115,886
Group policies withaut cash value 516,845 513653
Total Gross Premiums 2,017,812 1613,540
Less: Reinsurance Premiums Ceded
On indrvidual ife First year business 4,375 4623
On indvidual life second year business 12 (542
On individual life renewal business 93 535
Cin group policlas 320,012 354 855
less - Reinsurance commission on risk premium (3] [15]
324 483 359356
Met Premiums 1,693,129 1,254,184

‘Individual policies are those underwritten on an individual basis, and include joint life palicies underwritien
2B  INVESTMENT INCOME

Income from equity securities and mutual funds
Availoble for Sale

- Dividend income 2758 28,861
Income from debt securities
Held to Maturity

- Retwurn on government securities 270,620 23583912

273,378 268,773

29  NET REALISED FAIR VALUE GAINS / (LOSSES])
OM FINAMCIAL ASSETS

Available for sale
Realised gains on:

- Mutual funds 892130 7132

Total 82130 7132
30 NET FAIR VALUE LOSSES ON FINAMCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Impairmant in value of available for sale securities 1,598 8225
ey | OTHER INCOME

Return on bank balances 21,272 189,535

Return on term deposits 642 -

Gain on sale of property and equipment 72 287

Miscellaneous 198 265

22,184 20,087
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32

32

MNET INSURANCE BENEFITS

Gross Claims
Claims under individual policies
by death
by insured event other than death
by maturity
by surrender
Total gross individual policy claims

Claims under group palicies

by death

by insured event other than death
Total gross group policy claims
Total gross claims

Less: Reinsurance recoveries

On Individual ife claims
On Group life claims
Net insurance benefit expense

Claim Development

INDIVIDU AL
Accident Year

Estimate of ultimate claims costs:

Atend of accident year

Ore year later

Twiz years late

Theee years later

Four Jears iater

Current estimate af cumuative claims

Cumilative payments 1o date

Liability recogrised in the statement of finance posmon

GROUP
Accident Year

Estirngte of Uitimate claims costs

At gng of accdent year

One year ater

Two years later

Three years later

Fuour yesrs ater

Currert estimate of cumuletive caims

Cumuletye payments to date

Lability recograsad i the statement of finansal position

2024

2023

~------ Rupees in '000 -------

664 25141
31474 27792
233,245 111,887
265,383 164,520
264,208 451218
21778 5477
285984 456,695
551,367 E21515
8,514 (11,129}
(214,102) [32@,9551
345,779 251431
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Total
Rupeesin ‘000
46,150 7,352 8,555 22047 12544 97.652
1088 2593 2,873 2,082 - 8,515
. ik 200 . - 3
] 485 = - - 485
47,:.;:95 10.;33 12.531 24;1& 12.544 107,074
[32,873) (8751  (e484]  [8,858) [B.021) [&1.057]
14,3684 3802 6,148 15,251 6453 48,017
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Tatal
Rupeesin '000
388,599 308070 318612 338,824 242,235 1,556,340
35,081 56420 106041 55,802 - 257,353
3,750 5,335 33,398 - - A2 480
- 3815 - - - 3,815
431.;35 3?:—1,&_135 453.649 :-:194.1;“25 242.5:—15 1,399.5-33
427464 [372688] (448664 34]) [177.8420 1,784,089
3,375 50 8,386 28191 54,383 105,885
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2024 2023

Note  ------- Rupeesin'000 -------
33  ACOUISITION EXPENSES
Remuneration to insurance intermediaries on indhadual palicies:
- Commission to agent on first year premiums / contributions 391,085 306,715
- Commission to agent on second year premiums / contributions 353N 333714
- Commission to agent on subsequent renewal premiums / contributions 10,782 6.392
- Commisston to agent on single premiums / contributions 6,547 3488
- Other benafits o insurance intermadiaries

443,765 345203

Remuneration to insurance intermediaries on group policies:

- Commission 49821 42754
Cther acguisition casts

Stamp duty 6,453 56857
Employee banefit cost 331 2231 79,773

Depraciation on nght of Use assets 8.2 - -
Depreciation on property and equipment 8.1 2,773 3527
Travel and conveuyancs 7132 4110
Advertisements and sales promotion 56,543 428380
Printing and stationery 2,200 2238
Rent, rates and taxes 1,575 10209
Electrcity, gas and water 5196 4231
Entertainment 3,016 2818
Yehicle running expenses 11,447 8,389
Repalr and maintenance 2,193 1,961
Bank charges 739 174
Fostege, telegrams and telephone 4601 4,528
Insurance 2,948 2253
ljara rental 4,020 5418
Miscellaneous 688 897
344 696 280203
838282 672866

331 Employee benefit cost

Salarnes, allowances and other benefits 220,483 78317
Charges for post employment benefit 2688 1062
223,17 178,773
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34  MARKETING AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Employee benefit cost

Travel and conveyance
Advertisements and sales promotion
Printing and stationery

Depreciation on nght of use assets

Depreciation an property and equipment

Amortisation of intangible sssets
Rent, rates and taxes

Electricity, gas and water
Entertainment

‘“ehicle running expenses

Repair and maintenance

Annual Supervision fee SECP
Bank charges

Pustage, telegrams and telephone
jara Rental

Finance charges on lease liability against right of use asset

Fees, subscription and pernodicals
Insurance
Miscellaneous

34.1 Employee benefit cost

Salaries, allowances and other benefits
Charges for post employment benefit

35 OTHER EXPEMNSES
Legal and professional charges
Appointed actuary fees
Shariah Advisor Fee
Auditors' remuneration
Director fee
Cthers

351 Auditors' remuneration
Annual audit fee
Interim review
Reiew of code of corporate governance
COther Certifications
Out-of pocket expenses
Shariah audit fes

2024 2023
Mote  ------- Rupeesin'000 -------
341 230,952 186,725
8,459 5559
4,276 4794
8,959 10,033
8.2 14,082 12,488
8.1 5,553 7,906
- 1
1 142
6,184 39716
6,467 5,961
24,233 20607
29,185 23312
2,082 1,336
247 851
1377 273
17,087 1,033
B.467 2789
3,705 563
6,946 7,520
3,077 2178
391,680 320,098
209,218 169,430
21,734 17,295
230,952 186,725
19,188 5154
4104 4087
2760 2400
351 1,584 1578
875 1,070
279 -
28,730 17,2628
713 645
312 2584
89 a1
134 244
181 179
155 141
1,584 1578
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2024 2023

hlote =-—= Rupees in '000 —---
36 TAXATION
Cuirent 4,048 3621
Prior (768) 2977
3,280 £.5898

36.1 The Company computes provision for texetion in accordance with Income Tax Ordinance 2007 to ensure that the sufficient
provision for the purpose of taxation is available which can be analyzed as follows:

2023 2022 2021
----------- Rz in '000--=-mm-mm-
Tax provision as per finencial statements ae21 4565 380
Tax pauable / paid as per tax returm 28531 243z 1285
2024 2023
--—- Rupees in '000 —---
37 EARMNING / [LOSS) PER SHARE
Profit ¢ [loss) after tax for the year s esaan
Weighned average numbar of ordinary shares 180,172 150,772
Earming ! [Loss) per share 0.10 [110)
38 REMUMERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
Chief Exacutive Directors Executives*
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2022
Rsiin "000:
Fees - - B75 1070 - -
Managerial remuneration 20,890 14,235 - - 49 807 34325
House rent allowance 6,342 5328 - - 17,528 13852
Ukilities 7,752 65T - m 21,424 16831
Medical 1644 1,754 = = 4,277 3,080
Others 1,329 34913 . 5 18,473 16,397
37957 317 875 1070 111,509 B31895
Mumber of persons 1 ] 7 7 14 12

*Some of the executives have baen provided with Company maintzined cars
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39 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

33.1 Revenua Account by Statutory Fund Statuiory funds _
Group
For the year ended December 31, 2024 Ordinary  Universal  Accidentad Family Family 2024
Life Life and Health Takaful Takatul
Rsin "0DO0D
Income
Premium / Contributions less rensurances 162,218 243,385 = 1,252,705 34,810 1683128
MHET IMWeSLrETTt iNCome 26663 133,626 2318 173,308 8147 344,081
Total net income 188 8E2 37701 2318 1428011 42557 2037180
Insurance benefits and expenditure
Inswance benefits including bonuses, Net of reinsuwrance recover 56,710 131,947 - 141,179 15943 345773
Managarmant expanses lass racoveras 125,744 153,704 - 904,182 41170 1,228,810
Total insurance benefits and expenditure 186,454 285,651 - 104537 S57TN3 1,574,583
Income / [Deficit] of income over claims and expenditure 2428 81,370 2318 380,640 [14,156] 462607
Add: Policyhoiders ishilities at beginring of the year 13,581 556,955 = 54,380 13163 1238078
Less Pofoyholders’ liabilivies at erd of the year 22084  &55288 - 1,012,096 BOBE 1657564
[Deficit) / Excess [6,085] [ 2,318 22,924 [8,078) ans
Movamaent in policybolders' liabiities 8513 898,333 - 357,76 [5.077] 453485
Transfers from sharcholders' fund
- Captal contributions from shareholders” fung 10,000 - - E8,500 12,500 91,000
- Morsay caded to Wagl - - - - - -
Balance of statutory fund at baginning of the yesr 87,284 584,387 8,802 888,088 15803 1,348 422
Balance of statutory fund at end of the year 78632  B55737 12121 1,138,226 14,247 1,800,003
Represented by
Capital contriouted by shareholders’ fund 606,683 658,708 17,888 528,000 74500 1BBS TS
Momiey cedead to Wagf - - - - 500 500
Fuolicyhnlders' liablties 22034 655288 = 1,012,036 8086 16897564
Rotained sarnings on other than participsting business (48,086 (868.268) [5.747] [401.870) [88.83%) [1883.800)
Balance of statutory fund at end of the year 78,692 655,737 12,121 1138226 14,247 1,500,023
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For the year erded December 37, 2022

InCorma

Premium f Contributions less reinsuancas / re takaful
Wet rvestmaent incomea

Total net income

Claims ard expanditure
Claims, including boruses, net of reinsurance recaveres
Maragament expanees less recoveries

Total claims and expenditura

|Deficit)/Excess of income over claims and expenditure

Add: Pobcahalders’ iabilias at beginrung of the year
Less: Policyhalders' liabdties at end of the year

Inceme ! (Dafcit)
Mavamerit 1 palicyfiolders iabifties

Transfers from sharehoiders fund
- Canital cantrioutions from sharehalders' fund
- Memiey ceded to Wagf

Balarce of statstory fund &t begnning of the year

Balarce of stetutory fund at and of the year

Repraserited by:

Capital contributed by sharehalders' fund

Maney cedad o WagF

Folicyholders' Fzhbilites

Retaned earnings on other than partcipating business
Balarce of stattory fund at end of the year

Starutony funds

Ordinary Uriyersal  Accident®  Universs| Group 2023
Lifg Life health Eammiiy Famiii
LA LILR e R
114868 213335 2 BE1838 47465 12547184
23,089 12753 1864 26,156 10863 24 725
134575  32B148 1864 g77a94  SE328 14988909
85,208 85715 = E7034 43474 28143
o B4 137603 583,531 45 480 978,308
1@ga0a Z23zia E JSEESES  BOSG4 1250720
[S5327] 102830 1864 221423  [31E28) 238770
SETH 425 RES 293 698 BE7/S B20100
13581 556955 - 854 380 13183 1238079
27,863 (31,267 1864 [M3gzes] (33014 [172EDD)
[Ba190) 134097 - 360 G4 B.3EE 417579
5,500 20,000 . 189500 34,000 2718000
1o 4471537 7934 angay 13,529 BEB 252
67264 554,367 g a0z 29035 15503 1345422
SAEEE3  S58T0R 17863 ASRS00 82000 1794759
- S00 00
13581  S5E8ES = 554,330 137982 1235079
(s43.000) (651,296 (BOBE]  [424794) (597800 (1686376]
B7 264 564367 9802 BB3 036 15803 1346422
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39.2 Segment results by line of business Statutory funds
Accident &  Unaversal Group
health Famify Family 2024

For the year ended December 31, 2024 Ordinary  Universal

atia Ls business  Takaful  Takaful
Rein ‘000

Income
Gross premiums / condributions
Firat year 182 E3,654 = 558,558 - £23,404
Second yaar rerawal premium - 33290 - 277477 - 30,767
Subseguent year reqewsa’ pramium - 138,265 - 210,434 - 348,703
Single premium f Comribution individus! palices - 8,187 - 208,702 - 217889
Group Premiums / Contributions Jg2 220 - - - 134,628 516,849

Total gross premiums 382,412 244,400 = 12668171 134628  2MFE12
Retnsuranca premiums

- Irdiidusl premiums - 104 - 3,488 - 4,480

- GroUp prermiums 220,193 = . . 85,819 320,012

- Reinsurance commission on rsk premium - 1] - - - ]|
Total reinsurance premiums 220,193 1,005 - 3456 59815 324483
Net premium revenuss 162218 243385 - 1252705 34810 1683128
Net investment incams 26,663 133,626 2,318 173,306 B,147 344,067
Met income 183,882 377,021 2313 1426011 42857 2037190
Insurance benefits and expenditures
Insurance benefits, ncluding boruses, net of rensurance 58,710 131,947 - 143,179 15843 345,779
Maragemant expenses 955 [ECOVENSs 128744 153704 - 304,192 41170 1,228.810
Tetal insurance benefits and expenditures 186,454 285851 = 104551 57 N32 1574583
Excess / (Deficit] of income over insurance benefits 2428 81,370 2,319 380,640 [14,756] 462,601
Ado Foficyholders’ lishilities a1 beginning of the year 13,581 558,855 - 654,380 13163 1,238,073
Less Policyholders' liabirties at end of the year 220394  B55288 - 1012096 8088 1697564
Surplus / [deficit) [B,085) [8,963) 2,319 22,924 [5,078] 3116
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Stetutany funds

Accident & Universsl Group
Oidinary  Universal  health Famiy Family 2023
For the yesr ended December 31 2023 Life Life business Takaful Takaful
R= 1 'DOD
Ineome
Gross premiums  confrioutons
First gear 153 37224 £ 438,396 3 473773
ESeacond year renesval premium - 42 4004 - 2834659 - 302873
Subsequant year renswal premium - 133274 - Tanal = 206355
Sngle premum / Conrinutan indnduel poices - Tee - 11564 - 115886
Group Premeems £ Contributions 338190 - 175483 513853
Tutal gross premums 9EEA43 2l EE4 BESTI0 175483 1E19.540
Feinswance premiums
- Indinviguz| premiums - 1244 - 3272 - 4516
- Group premiuma 228 BS7 - - - 127238 34855
- Reinaurance commissinn on risk premium - (15} - - - 15)
Trtal reinsurance oremiums 226857 1228 e I = 358,836
Mt peBrnium revenues 1 ABE 213395 287838 47465 1254184
et irvestment income 230839 T2 753 1864 95,156 D83 244 725
Met income 134 575 326,148 1854 F77934 GE3238 1428909
Insurance benefits and expendiures
Insurance benefits including bonuses, net of reinsurance BE 208 8B5S BT 0ad 43474 2871431
Management experses (2= recoveres 04,684 137,603 - 23553 48 480 578,308
Totel insurance benefits and expendituras 784 802 223318 = 736,585 28,954 1258739
[Daficit] f Expass of income over insurance banalits [55327) 102 BE0 1854 21429 [F1626] 239170
0o Policybolders’ liabilites st baginning of the gear 8677 422838 o 233636 &7T7a 8207100
Less: Policyhalders' lisbilities at end of the yeer 13581 E5E.855 - G54 380 13,163 1,238,073
Surplus / [deficth 27863 {3135?7'} 1864 13g255] (38004 (17RE09)
303 Segment Statsment of fnancial position e Statutary funds
e Azcident & Universal
DOrdimary Unlvesaal : Group Family
fund : . galth Fanil 2024 2023
Life LiF b::iru:; 'ratqr3| Taleifl
FZ in ‘000
Proparty end Bquipmedt 7144 = £ H . 744 15840
Fightt of use asseis 18,852 16,852 32776
Intarainle a55eTs - - - - -+ - s
|nveatmeTtE
Euity seeurities 14,132 - - . . . 14,132 8,578
Government securibes 2ER8,64E 57489 35,363 12308 582,581 23,745 1810,188 12412y
Mutual funds 11081 - - - AD9,309 4,068 634,455 340,793
Teim deposits raceipte . - - - - - - -
Leans secored aganst ifs isurance poicies . 1288 2,628 - - 5114 5382
lnsurance J TRINEUNanCE recRvalies - 53,135 - ams - - 53,51 =R
{sher '0ana and receivabies 40,707 2482 2438 1257 25725 1163 F4.78E 50,580
Teretion - paymerts Bss proviso 72,307 - - - E - 72,307 51343
Prapaymants 5,514 - - - - - 5544 H063
Cash ard Bank 13,150 7,534 32037 1943 177,889 12,243 244 804 a0 005
Totel pessts

Insuranca iabdhes - B3 535 725379 3588 108,292 MEE:  \B23388 1354368
Retremant henafit obligatars 76,582 - - - - - 76862 5408
Prepriuim received in advence - 8,748 73562 " 173375 1318 188,780 7503
sudance / stinsuiarce payables - 123,297 e 181 7,856 2atao 165,263 404
‘ither crediors end accnuzle 57614 WLEGT 8,067 - 66,872 5,074 150,694 W4 B34
Lesse Ity Egainst rgnt of use essets 13,817 - - _ Rt - 31108
Tarzl Lizhilbas 154 413 204 548 TEA,077 A TE0 1268483 A5 503 2440, 334 1702233
Held o foeailable far
40 MOVEMENT BN INVESTMENTS Totsl
— Mty 2
R iy TR0

At baghreng of prevaus eer 1241127 Lt R 1591239
Addiicnsg STETIN 205424 BE13335
Dispials {sake and recemanars] [EBCesl (2e20888)  [FE36O0E3]
Regined far velue gain - EEREH] B2430
Unrealisen feir value luas \B21 lazl
Imparment . i 1598

18701173 648515 2453 788
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41

411

WINDDW TAKAFUL OPERATIONS

Thie statement of financial pasticn of Window Takeful Operatons as st December 37, 2024 and Its firanclal peformance Toe the perod ended

December 3, 2024 is as folows

Statemant of Financial Position
A5 &t December 31, 2024

Share capital and reserves
Funds received from Shereholders' Fund
Capital reswrmed to Shereholders' Fund
Avcumulated Surpius ; [Defict)

Oarc-e-Hesna contribumed by e Window Takaful Cperatar

Met shargholders aguity

Balance of sttutory fund  [including  Technical
reserves Ra. 1020182 milllon [December 21, 2023
Re.667.543 millian)

Deferred liablities
Star retirement benefits

Creditors and accrusls
Outstanding ciaims
Contributions received in advance
Amount due 1o takafil / re-takafl cporators
Amounts dua to agents
Accrusd prperises
Tnner creditors and accrusls

Total hisbifities
Commitments

Total equity and labifltes

Statutory funds Aggregate Agoregats

Operator's ”’";ﬁﬁ;"“ m December 31, || Decamber 31,
Sub Fund Takafud Takah 2024 2022

ammmmmmmmcmemeoeos ——Rupees in M00--------creen- ———————

81,058 - b 81,058 16,557

81,058 - - 81,058 1BEE1

= 1.0681,154 10,261 1.07,£15 EBE 327

i 9297 6.858 16,1585 23,044

- 173,373 1,318 Trd, G688 49,430

- 7858 22,730 30,588 401873

2,734 - - 62,734 3Fan

_B.288 324 1600 10,212 &.300

o022 180,850 32544 284,418 152988

o2 1.252,004 42,805 1365831 241315

182,080 1,252,004 42,805 1,446,888 A5797E
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Statutoryfunds ][ Aggregsts |

| Aogregete

Operators | |Universallifell  Group |l p. oo 9q || cecomber 31,
Sub Fund Family Famity 2024 2023
e R Rupees in 000—--eeeeaeea
Cash and bank deposits
Casnand others 1,860 - - 1860 880
Currem and other acooums 72,5565 107,560 B.2687 188,382 218607
Deposits maturing within 12 months = = - = ok
74,416 07,560 8287 130,242 219.287
Unsacured loans to employees - - - -
Investments
GOP Sukuks 70,008 513,253 23,114 806,378 APESEE3
Listed securitias - . . - -
Dper end matual furds - E0S,303 14,088 628,377 291d™
Prowigion Far diminuotion i valie - - - - -
70008 1,122,562 37182 1.228,753 E13E34
Current assets - otheds
Cuontributions dus but urgeid - - - - -
Amourt duss from takaful S re-takefol opevaturs - - - - -
Suncry recaivaties - - - - -
Investment income acerued 73 25272 230 25,675 19,023
tdyances and deposits 1.215 - - 1218 B2
Prepayments - - - - -
Taxation - payments kess provisicn - - - - -
Inter fund baiznce B.264 [3.320) [2.574] - -
7.656 21,882 [2.624] 26,854 15,855
Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Furniture & fixture, office equipments - - - - -
Maotor vehicles - - = = =
Right of uze = - ¥ - =
Computer eguipments - - - - -
Intangible assets
Softweres - - - - —
Total assets T i5e0B0 1252004 42805 TA446B8S 857976
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41.2 Revenue Account
For the year ended December 31, 2024

41.2.1 Participants’ Investment Fund [PIF]

Inesarme

Afiocated comributicn
Investment income
Total net income

Less: Claims and Expenditure
Claims
Takaful cperator fee

Exgess of Income over Claims and expenditure

Add : Technical reserves at the beginning of the
paticd

Less : Techrucal resenvas at the end of the pencd
Incoenie retained in PIF

Movement in technical reserves

Surplus before distribution

Mowvement in technical reserves

Transfers fiom

Qard-e-Hasna comributed by Window Takatul
Cperator

Money ceded to Wagf

Balarce of FIF at the beginning of the period

Balance of PIF at the end of the period

Statutory Funds -—--Aggregata----

u -FarI'IHLlLifE Group Family | December 31, | Decarnber 31,

Talatul Takaful 2024 2023
Rupees in '000

713,357 - 713,357 430400
161,676 - 181,678 BR R3S
E75.033 - B7E.083 578235
136,472 - 136,472 BOATE |
295,580 - 395 580 156 310
32,052 - S3z.082 216 EBS
342881 - 342,881 353550
643,834 - 649,884 291,083
895,579 - 995,579 £45,884
[2.114]) - [2.714) 3748
{342,881 - (342981  [382550)
342981 = 242,987 362,550
E62,258 - 662,258 253708
1005235 - 1,005,239 BE2258
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41.3 Revenue Account
For the yeer ended December 31, 2024

Statutory Funds ----Aggregate----
45 Famzlyl-lfe Group Family | December 37, | December 21,
Takaful Takaful 2024 2023
---------------------- ~-Rupessin ‘000
41.3.1 Participants’ Takaful Fund [PTF)

Income
Contribution net of ratakaful 535,348 34,810 574,158 438903
Mt inweStMENT Incomea 8,170 7,334 16,504 14077
Other incame - i L =z

543 518 42 144 590,662 452 SB0O
Less: Clzims snd Expenditure
Claims 4,707 15,843 20,650 50,733
Mudarsh's share 3210 2,557 5777 40837
Takaful operator fee (Wakaia) 510,668 13460 524,128 387376

518,585 31,870 550,555 443 436
Excess / (Defoit] of Income over Claims and expenditure 29,933 10,174 40,107 13,544
Add - Techrical reserves st the beginning of the perind 4,485 13,163 17,658 9,388
Leszs : Technica reserves at the end of the pencd 168,517 8.088 24,603 17558
Surpius retained in PTF 17912 15,251 33,163 2373
Maovemant in technical reserves [29.833 [10,174] [40,107] [12.544)
Surplus before distribution
Movement in technilcal reserves 28,833 10,174 40,107 10544
Transfers from
Jard-e-Hasna contnibuted by Window Takatul Jperator - - - =
Maney ceded to \Wagh - - - -
Balznee of PTF a2t the baginriag of the pericd 25,382 87 26,089 15,525
Balance of PTF at the end of the perod 55815 10,267 BE,176 26053
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Statutory Funds Aggregate
41.3.2 Operators’ Sub Fund [DSF) l:lm::r:‘;Lere Graup Family || December 7, || Decamber 31,
Taleatul Takaful 2024 2023
--------------------------------- Rupeesin 000"« cemmmmammaaan
Income
£llogation fee 37,896 - 37,8596 25 EES
Investmerns income 2480 B13 3273 4107
Takaful oparator fee [Wahkalz) B28.402 13,460 841,862 4484 279
Certificate admin fes 23582 - 23,552 18,232
Mudarah's share 3,210 2,567 5777 4927
VWakalat-ul-lsusmar 18,398 - 16,388 7203
911,919 16,840 o8 750 352720
Less: Expenses
Acoulsition cost 654,430 14,430 E58,920 LIBBEE
ATministraton expenses 249,702 26,740 276 442 207145
Total management cost 804,192 41,1770 945,262 736,01
Excess of [experditurel: over income 7727 (24,330) [16,603] (182297
Add - Technical reserves at the beginning of the period
Lass : Technlcal reseryas ot the end of the parlod - - - -
Surplus / [Defizit) 7,727 [24,330) [16,603) RERRR]
Movement in technical reserves - - - 2
Capital Contribution dusing the pariod 68,500 12,500 81,000 183500
Oard-e-Hzsra contributed o the Participants Takaful - - - -
Fund
Balance of 0O5F at the beginning of the penod 244 15,877 16,661 5452
Balance of 5F at the end of the pesicd TroM 3887 81,058 16561
414  Statement of Contribution
For the year ended December 37, 2024
Statutory Funds Aggregate
Universal Group o
: i ecember | December
Life Family| Family | o5 2924 | 31 2023
Takaful Takaful " '
————————————————— ‘Rupees in '000
Gross Contributions
Regular contributions individual family takaful*
- First year 559,558 - £59,558 436 396
- Sgcond year 277477 - 2T7ATT 260 468
- Subsaquant year renewal 210,434 - 210,434 73,087
Single Contribution mdividual family takaful 208,702 = 208702 Ti5164
Group family takeful contribution without cash value - 134,629 134,629 175463
Total Gross Contributions 1256171 134629 13890800 1050573
Participants’ Investment Fund
Allocated regular contribution 514,91 - 514,971 382609
Allocated single contribution 198,386 - 198,286 10779
713,357 - 713,357 490400
Participant's Takaful Fund [PTF]
Gross cortribution 542,814 1348235 B77.443 570173
Less: Retakaful Contribution Ceded
On individual first year business 3,688 - 3688 3917
On individual second year business E - 5] [6B3)
On individual renewal business (228) - (228) 18
O group family takaful - 85,879 88,819 127,958
Net Contributions 535,348 34,810 574,158 438503
“‘Individual family Takaful those underwritten an an indradueal basie, and includes Jaint Life Family takaful undenwritten as
such.
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41.5

Statement of Claims
For the year ended December 21, 2024

Gross claims
Claimz under indiadual famiy talaful
- by death
- by covered event athar than death
- by rvaturity
- by surrender
Total gross individual family takaful claims
Clzams under group family takaful
- by death
- by coverad event ather then desth
Total group family takatul claims
Total Gross Claims

Participants' Investment Fund [PIF]
Claimz under indivmdual famiy takeaful

- by death

- by covered event ather than death

- by maturity

- by surrender
Total gross indreidual family taaful ciaims

Participants' Takaful Fund [PTF]
Cialms undear indivdual fanily takaful
- by death
- bu covered event ather then death
- oy maturity
- by surrender
Total gross indieidual family takaful claims

Clzlms under group family takaful

- by death

- by coverad event ather than death
Total group family takatul claims

Less: Retakaful recoveries

On individual family takaful first year claims
O indivedual Tamily takaful second dear clams

Un individual family takaful renawal claims
UOn group takaful claims

Met Claims

Statutory Funds Aggregate
”“':‘z::ﬁ"u"'f“ Group Family | |December 31| | ecermber 31,
Takaful Takaful 2024 2023
Rupeas in 000 -aacmmmcamcmmanaaa
(2,632 - [2.632] 17,247 |
125,287 - 135,257 59,583
132,685 i 132,665 7E,B4D
- 77,805 77,505 201,879 |
- 2768 27588 4759
= 20,673 80,673 206748
122,665 80,673 273,328 283588
1175 - 1175
135,297 - 135,297 58593
136,472 E 136,472 CRELE]
{3.807] - [3.807] 1B 465
[2.807] - (3,807 IEABS
R 77.805 77.805 201573 |
i 2768 a7es 4763
- BO,673 80,673 206748
[8.514] - [B,514] 8,806
= 84,730 84,730 B2274
141178 15,943 157,122 R

{95} Askari Life Assurance Co. Ltd.




4.6

Statement of Expenses
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Operators’ Sub Fund

Acguisition costs
Remuneration to takaful intermediares an individual famiby talatul:
- Commigsian on first year contributions
- COmmISsion on SEcoas UBar comtioutions
- Commissian on subsequaent renawal cantributicns
- Commissian to 8gent on single premiums / contrioutons
- Other benefits 1o akaful intermedianes

Remuneration to takaful intermediaries an group family takaful:
- Commissin
Other acquisition costs:

Employze benefit cost

Depreciaton or propearty and equiprmedt
Trave! and conveyance
Advertsarments and salss promotion
Printing and stationery

Electriciny, gas and water

Rent. rates and taxes

Vehicte running expenses

Repar and maintanance

Postage, talegrams and telephone
Firarice charges

fjara remtal

Miscellaneous

Stamp duty

Depreciation on nght of use 2ssets
Enfartanment

Bank charges

Insurance

Total acquisition cost
Administration expenses

Shariah Advisor Fos

Employes benafit cost

Vehle running expenses
Miscallaneous

Prirting and stationery

Fees, subscnpticn and pericdicals
Fent rates and taves

Cepreciaticn on groperty ard eouigment
Bark charges

Postage, telegams and telephons
Entaitainment

Advertisements and sales promotion
AJditars’ remunergticn

Trawel and cooveyance

Depreciation on right of use assets
Armortisation of intargible assets
Electricity, gas and water

Repair and maintenances

Annual Superdision fes SECP

ljara Rental

Finance changes on leese Bability against right of use Bsset
Insurance

Legat and professional charges
Appointed actuary fees

Sross managemsnt expenses

Statutory Funds Agoregate
Univerzal Life | Graup Family | December 31, | Decamber 31,
Famdy Takaful Tekaful 2024 2023

-——-—-—-—-——-"mTpaesm ‘000
72014 - 3720149 283,46
32136 - 33,136 30628
7,183 - 7183 2783
6,272 - 8,272 3437
ATEETE - ATE.ETS 455504
I -] 7978 | 7,878 | 7538 |
144,933 4,888 148,837 122182

2,321 - 2321 2,834

3,581 243 3,824 2581

47126 234 47 360 30,835

1,686 5 1,681 1787

4,350 - 4,350 3405

8,725 - 8,725 B217

344 T8O 4221 4153

1.643 - 1643 1454

281 59 2930 3382

2,898 124 3022 4028

SE3 5 584 o3
2,281 % 5,287 s
2281 34 2,315 2133

BE0 54 734 189
2469 2469 1.7a7

235575 6,452 242@5? 194,734

245,702

2453 267 2760 2400
137,051 14,6586 151,747 7353
14 457 1.551 16.018 12387
2,405 a5g 2663 1738
6,345 B57 7002 7423
2128 228 2357 360
1 - 1 84
anz 334 3448 4577
109 12 121 684
9,304 998 10,302 1729
3,635 390 4025 3an
2,501 268 2,769 533
247 102 1043 388
4 804 526 5430 4020
7.881 846 8,737 7388
- - - 7
3465 372 3837 23E
16,427 1748 18,175 13800
1,167 125 1,282 -
10,244 1098 1,342 AL
3623 3B8 4,012 1E50
3,888 418 4,314 4449
1L.0317 1183 12214 227
2,555 274 2,829 2673
25,740 276,442 207145
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Statement of Investmeant Income Statutory Funds Apgregate
For the year ended December 31, 2024 universal Life | Group Family | December 31, | ose 31
Famiby Takaful Takaful 2024 2023
‘Rupees in 000

Participante’ Investment Fund [PIF]
On government securities 75914 - 75,814 E3.203
On other fixed income securities and deposits 6,437 - 6,437 2013
Drddend income 1548 - 1548 1850E
Armortization of discount relative to par - - - -
Gam on sale of investmeants 77,778 - Tr778 4406
Unrealised (loss] ! gain on investments - - - -

Met investment income of PIF a 161,676 - 161,676 BE B35

Participants’ Takaful Fund [PTF)
On gowemmant securiies 3,268 2858 6,126 7960
on ather fixed incame securmies and degosits 230 961 1,191 as0
Oividend income 30 248 278 4075
Amartization of discount/{premium| - - - .
Zain on sale of Investiments 5842 3,267 8,909 1048
Linrealised (loss] ! gain on investments = o = =

Wet investment income of PTF b 8,170 7,334 16,504 14,077

Operators’ Sub Fund (OSF)
On govermment securitigs 703 613 1322 2287
Cn athar fiwed income securities and deposits 1757 194 1,851 1820
DOividend incomea = = = -
Armartization of discount/{premium) - - - -
|Loss)/ gain on sale of investments - - - -
Unrealised {loss) ! gain on investments - - - -

Met invastment income of DSF [ 2480 B13 3273 47107

Net investment income (a+b+e) 173,306 8,147 181453 07015

Management of insurance and financial risk

The Company's overall risk management seeks w0 minimize patental agwerse effects on the Comoany's
financial performance of such risk.

The Board of Directors has the overall respansibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's
risk management framework, There are Board Committees and Management Committees for developing
risk management polcles and its monitoring.

The risks invoived with financial Instruments and the Company's approach to managing such rigks are
discussed below,

Insurance risk

The risk Under an insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty
of the amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random
grd therafare unpredictable. The principal risk that the Company faces under such cortracts is that the
cpeurrence of the Insured events and the severity of reported claims, The Company's risk profile is
improved by diversification of these risks of losses 1o a farge portfolic of contracts as a diversified
portfolic is less likely w be affected by an unexpected event in single sUDseL.
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4217 Universal Life

al

b)

d)

g

The risk underwritten is mainly death and sometimes disabllity and ‘or eritical iness. The risk of death
and disability will vary from region to region. The Company may get exposed to poor risks due to
unexpected experience in terms of claim severity or frequency This can be a result of anti-selection,
fraudulent claims, a catastrophe or poor persistency. The Company may also face the risk of poor
imvestment return, inflation of business expenses and liguidity issues on monies invested in the funa
The Company faces the risk of under-pricing particuiarly due to the fact that these contracts are long
term. Additionally, the risk of poor persistency may result in the Company being unable to recover
expenses incurred at policy acquisition

The Campany manages these risks through its underwriting, reinsurance, claims handling poliey and
other refated contrals. The Company has a well defined medical under-writing policy and avoids selling
policies to high risk individuals. This puts a check on anti-selecticn. Profit testng is conducted on an
annual basis to ensure reasonableness of premiums charged. Reinsurance contracts have been
purchased b% the Company to limit the maximum exposure on - any one pelicyholder. To avoid poor
persistency the Company appliss guality controls on the standard of service provided to polieubolders
and has placed checks 1o curb mis—seﬁing and improvemnant in standard of service provided to the
policynolders. For this, a reguiar monitering of lapsaton rates is conducted. On the claims handiing side,
the Company has procedures in place to ensure that payment of any fraudulent claims is avoided. For
this, Claims Committee with variahle matenality limits review all claims for verification and specific and
detaled investigation of all spparently doubtful claims [particulardy of high amaunts] is conducted The
Company maintains adeguate liguidity in each unit funa to catertor potentally sudden and high cash
reguirement. The Company reserves the right to review the charges deductible under the contracts,
thus limiting the risk of under-pricing

Frequency and severtty of claims

The Company charges for mortality risk on a monthily basis for all insurance contracts. It has the right
o aiter these charges based on its mortalty experience and Nence minimizes Its exposure o maortality
risk. Lelays in implementing increases in charges and market or regulatory restraints over the extent
of the increases may reduce its mitigating effect The Company manages these risks through its
underariting strateqy and reinsurance arangements.

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts
Uncertainty In the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts for long = universal life
risurance contracts arses from the urpredictabilty of long-term changes In overall levels of mortality
and variability in policyholder's behavior

Process used to decide on assumptions

For long-term universal life insurance contracts, assumptions are made in Tao stages. 4t inception of
the contract, the Company determines assumptions on Tuture mortality, persistency, administrative
Expenses and investment returns, At reguiar intervals, profittesting is conducted on main palicies.
Changes in assumptions

There has been no change In assumpticns during the year,

Sensitivity analysis

Profit and loss account Equity
100 bp 100 bp
Pizinchiied et 100 bp increase | | 100 bp decrease
-=------(Rupees in '000)------- -------{Rupees in '000)--------
Cash flow sensitivity 19,391 (19.391) 19,391 (19,391]
31 December 2023
Cash flow sensitivity 13.987 (13.987) 13.887 (13.987)
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4212 Ordinary Life

b)

c)

d]

el

The main risk written by the Company is mortality. The Cempany may be exposed to the risk of
umexpected claim severity or freguency. This can be a result of writing business with higher thar
expected martality lsuch as mining or other hazardous industries], writing figh cover emounts without
adequate underwrtng, difficaty of vestfication of claims, fraudulert claims or a catastrophe The Compary
also faces risk such as that of under-pricing to acquire business i & competitive environment and of
non-receipt of premium in dua tme. There also exists g potential risk of asset liability term mismatch
due toligbilitias baing very short tarm in nature

The Company manages these risks through undenwriting, reinsurance, effective claims handling and
ather related contrcls. The Company has a well defined medical under-writing policy and avaids writing
business for groups with overly hazardous exposure. Pricing is done in line with the actual experience
of the Company. Thie premium chiarged takes intc account the actual experience of the client and the
riature of mortaity exposure the group faces The rates are cartified by the appointed actuary for farge
groups. The Company also rmairtaing an MIS to track the adequacy of the orerniurn charged. Reinsurance
contracts have been purchased by the Company to limit the maximum exposure to any life. At the same
tme, due caution is applied in writing business in areas of high probabiity of terrorism. The Company
ensures writing business with good geographical spresd and tries to maintain 8 controlled exposure to
large groups which generslly have poor claim experience. Writing business of known hazerdous groups
is also avoided On the claims handling side, the Company ensures that payment of any fraudulent
claims is avaided Far this, a claims committee reviews all large claims for verification. Strict monitaring
is In place In order 1o keep the outstanding balances of premium at a minimum, especially the ones that
are overdue. The bulk of the assets held against liabilities of this fine of business have a short duration,
thus mitigating the risk of asset valle detericration.

Frequency and severity of claims

The risk is affected by several factors eg. age. occupation, benefit structure and |ife stule. The Company
attempts to manage th's rsk through its underwriting, claims handling and reinsurance palicy. Concentration
of risk arising from geographical area is not a factor of concern due to spread of risks across varicus
parts of the country

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future benefits payments and premium receipts

Other than conducting a llability adequacy for Unexpired Risk Reserves (URR) there is no need to
estimate mortality for future Jears because of the short duration of the contracts:

Process used to decide on assumptions

Stetistical methods are ysed to adjust the rates to 2 best estmate of martality. Where data is sufficient
10 De statistically credible, the statstics generatad by the date is essigned appropriate credibility factors
to account for the group's experience.

Changes in assumptions

There has been no change in assumptions during the year.

Sensitivity Analysis

Profit and loss account Equity
100 bp 100 bp .
Heteate dicronsd 100 bp increase | |100 bp decrease
———————— [Rupees in '000]------- -===---|Rupees in "000}--------
Cash flow sensitivity 19,391 (19,391) 19,391 (19,391)
31 December 2023
Cash flow sensitivity 13,987 (13,987 13987 (13,287
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Interest rate risk exposure

[mterest rate figk s the risk that the fair valie or future cash flows of a financial instroment will fluctuate
becase of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from investment
in government secunties and baiances held in profit and |oss sharing accounts with reputable banks:
At the reporting date the detailed interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial
Irstruments is disclosed in note 42,271

Equity Price Risk

The Company's investmentin isted securities are susceptible to market price rigk ars ng from uncertainties
about the future value of Investment securities. The Company manages equity price risk by mairtaining
a diversified porticlio and by continuous monitoning of developments in eguity market The Company
is exposed 1o equity price risk with respect to its investments in quoted securities. Change of 1G% in
equity prices (N4 in case of mutual fund) will resultin change in prces of respective equity instruments
by Rs. 64.860 million {2023 Rs. 35017 million)

4222 Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that the counter party ta a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the
Company by failing to discharge an obligation. The Company's policy is to enter into financial contracts
with reputable eounter parties in accordance with the internal guidelines and regulator requirements.

The maximum exposure 1o credit risk before any credit enhancements as at December 31, 2024 is the
carruing amount of the financial assets as sat out below:

2024 2023
--------- (Rupees in '000)-==========
Financial Assets
Insurance / reinsurance recaivables 5351 65,814
Other loans and recenables 73,788 50,590
Cash and Bank 244 906 280,005
372,205 357409

Bank balances

The Company maintained its funds with banks having strong credit rating, Currently the funds are kept
with banks having rating ranging from AAA to A-,
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Bank Balances A A Ly A= At A Hi- Suepended Total

Rupees in "000
December 37 2024
Bank Balances 8,253 178,213 24,502 - 26,924 - 2,760 - 241,652
Deoernber 37, 2023
Bark Balances 1549 181,024 T2 SEE4 15.209 10 7BE 5842 1 279,099

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration is the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a
particular industry or geographical location

Concentration of risks arise when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered inta with
the same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged im simnilar business activities,
or activities in the same gecgraphic regicn, or nave similar econcmic features that would cause their
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in econcmic, poltical or cther
nur‘.r:l?tiuns. The Company mananes such risk by diversifying its portfolio and entening into transactions
with diverse credit worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit
rsk

4223 Capital risk managements

The Compand's objsetive when managng capital is to safe guard the Company's ahility o contnue as
a going concern sa that it can continue to provide retuns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, end to maintain 8 strong capital base to support the sustained development its businesses
The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adiustments
to itin the light of changes in economic condtions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company may adust the emount of dividend paid to shareholders or lssuge new shares,

Currently the Company has a paid up capital of Rs. 1,501 millon against the minimum required paid-

up capital of Rs. 700 million set by the SECP for the lite insurance companies for the year ended
Lecember 37, 2024

43 MANAGEMENT OF TAKAFLUL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
The Company Is respansible for managing contracts that resuitin the wransfer of Takaful and Financial
Risk fram the Participant to the PTF. This section summarizes the risks and the way the Company
marages them, as part of the Company's Window Takaful Operations.
Takaful Risk
The PTF issues Taxaful contracts that are classified in the following segments:

- Individual Family Takaful
- Group Family Takaful

Individual Family Takaful
These risks are managed slong simiar fnes as explained for universal Iife business
a) Frequency and severity of claims

Concentraton of risk s not a factor of concern due to spread of ns«s acrss various parts of the courrtry
However, undue concentraton by amounts could have an'mpact on the severity of benefit payments
on 2 partfolio basis. However, a risk of concentration of risk on any cne Participant of the PTF still exists
The Company caters to this risk by entering into suitable Retakaful arrengements. For the basic life
The Company charges for martality risk/Waof Donation (credited to the PTF) on @ monthly basis for
all Takeful contracts without fixed term
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Mereover, the Company manages these risks through its underwriting strategy and the results are
revised quarterly by the Underwriting and Reinsurance Committee.

bl Suurce of uncertainty in the estimate of future henefits pauments end contributions receipts
Uncertainty In the estimation of future benefit payments and contribution receipts for long term takaful
Conuacts anses from the unpredictabilny of long-term changes in overall levels of mortality snd vanabilrty
in participants’ behawiour [this prmarnly impacts persistencyl

¢ Process used to decide on assumptions

- Mortality The expected mortality is assumed as mentioned in note 5771,

- Persistercy: A perindic analysis of the Cormpany's recent and historic experience is performed and
persistency is calculated every month. Persistency rates vary by products and mare importantly the
sales distribution channel,

- Expense levels and inflation: A penodic study is conducted on the Company's current business
expenses and future projections to calculate per membership expenses. Expense inflation is assumed
irt line with assumed investmert retunm.

- Investment returns; The investmenit retums assumptions are Dased on the assets becking the portfalio.
d) Charige in assumptions

Thee has been no change i assumptons,

Group Family Takaful

The main risk written by the Company is mortality. The Company may be exposed to the risk of
unexpected claim severity or frequency. This can be a result of writing business with higher than
expected mortality [such ag mining or other hazardous industries), writing high cover amounts without
adequate undenwriting, and difficulty cf verification of claims, fraudulent claims or a catastrophe. The
Company also faces risk such as that of under-pricing to acguire business in a compettive environment
ard of non-receipt of medel contribution in due time

The Company manages these risks through its:

a) Pricing and Underwriting:

All products of this nature are prepared by the Group Underwriting Department along with input from
relevant sales team members which |s then reviewed by the &ppointed detuarny,

Fricing is done in line with the actusl experience of the Company. The contribution charged takes into
account the actual experience of the Group Participant and the nature of montality expesure the group
faces.

Atthe same time. due caution is applied in writing business in areas of high probability of terorism. The
Company ensures writing business with good geographical spread and tUies to maintain a contrelled
exposure to large groups which generally have pocr exposure

Furthermaore, the Company also maintains various MIS that are shared with relevant management to
track the adeguacy of the contribution charged

dlso, Underwriting & Reinsurance Committee reviews the undenwriting performance of the Commpany
on @ guarterly basis
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b) Retakaful:

Retakaful agreements are in place w limit the mon@lity exposure. Underwriting & Reinsurance Committee
reviews every gquarter the performance of the treaties to ensure that adeguete retakeful coverage is
In place.

c) Claims handling policy:

"The Comgany has procedures in place to ensure that paument of any fraudulent claims Is avoided
Cetaled investigaticn of all material and apparently doubtful elaims is conducted. Moreawver, Claims
committee has assigned claims process authority limits for processing of claims. Claims committee
meets on a guarterly basis to review the claims department's performance and to make sure that
adequate claims controls are in place’

d) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future benefits payments and contribution receipts:

Other than eonducting 2 liabiity adequacy for unearned contnbution reserve, there s no need to estimate
martaiity for future years because of the short durstion of the contracts.

&) Process used to decide on assumptions

Where data is sufficiert to be statistically credible, the statistics gererated by the data is assigned
appropriate credibility factors to account for the group's expenience.

f] Change in assumptions

There has beer no material change in assumptions.

Concentration of Takaful Risk

A concentration of risk rmay arise from a single Family Takaful Contract issued to a particuiar type of
Participanit within a geographical location or to types of commercial business. The Company minimizes

its exposiure 1o significant insses by cbtaining re-takaful from foreign Re-Takatul Operataor

To optimize benefits from the principle of average ard law of large numbers, gecgraphical spread of risk
is uf extreme importance.

There are a number of parameters which are significant in assessing the accumulation of risks eg
financial undarwriting ensuring a reasonanle relationship between the income and Family Takaful
coverage amount of person covered, determination of Family Takaful Coverage amount through
mecharism which preciudes individual choices end anti-salection

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

4| assets and liabiities for which fair value is measured or disclosed n the financial statements are
cetegonsed within the far value hierarchy, cescribed as folows, based on the lowest level input that
s significant to the fair value measurement as a whole

Level 1 - Quoted unedjusted) market prices in active markets for [dentical assets ar isbilities

Lewval 2 - valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that s significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unubservable
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Fullowing are the assets which are either measured at fair value or where fair value 1s only disclosed
and Is different from thei- carrying value;

Government securities
Listed securities
Open end mutual funds

Government securities
Listed securities
Open end mutual funds

#5 STATEMENT OF SOLVERCY

ARRaLS
Progerty and aguipmant
Rughit of usP BEEETE
[ntangiala aggAts
nvaskments
Egquimy securies
GOWamiment sacurmes
Mzl funs
Term depnsis racaqts
_Aans ERCUNAd anainet e MsLTEnca anlhices.
[MEUPANCE f MANELEENCE TECENVATHAE
Oitfier laans ard feceieies

Taualion - peymerts |ms previsian
T
Cach and Bank

Tovtml fussserta (£

Inadmissible Azzets
Praperty ard mquipmeant
ritangible asseis
FestmeTts
Eqjuity sercuities
rsurance | neimience recevables
Other loare erd recehshEy
Toitnd of ln-admissible asseis [B]

Totnd Admissible Assets [C=i-B]

Tote! Linhifities

Insurarce linbites
Retrement benefit chigstiars

Bremum receiest it sthancs

Imsurarce  rensurance pegables

Other greditoss and acoryzls

_sase lebilty aganst right of vse awscts
Tond Liskiditie= (0]

Total Het Admissbiz Assets [E=C-D)

Miremum Salvercy Reguirement
Sharghaiders fund
Urminary Life
Urmoersal Life
accident snd Heath
Lrmsrsal Famiy Tasatul
Groug Famlg' Takahui
Tatal sabincy margn required
Excass m Het ddmissible Assots over Minimum Requiremonts

31 December 2024
Fair value measurement using
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
=s=msmsao=--[Rupees in '000]--=---manneus
- 1,810,188 -
14,132 - -
634,468 * -
648,600 1,810,188 =

31 December 2023

Far value measurement using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
------------- (Rupees in '000)-------------

= 12417127 Z

8,372 = =

340,793 = &

350,172 1,247,127 -

Shargholders  Owdinary  Universal  Accikdentand Unvorsal  Grouvp Famey Dacember 31,  Decambar
Fund Lite Life Heaith Family  Taksful 2024 I 2023
R — T T T ——

17,144 - - - - 7,144 13B4D
TaEee - - - - 18,692 3276
a2 - - - » 5 RRhEH] 9.3
fededs  1ErdEa TE5363 12305 582591 #3785 1AM, 188 1241127
nesn - - - BE3na a3 634,468 340793
1486 3628 - - - 574 5332
- 53135 - I - - 53,51 BE&H
40707 adoa 2438 1257 25725 1169 73.7B8 50590
72307 2 5 . 5 2307 51343
5514 - - . - - S5 ES53
18150 7514 ER0E7 1043 177,900 823 244908 2BOCOS
461,382 ZBZI4G  7B5,A86 HEET 1,095 624 512965 2948764 2099002
7,044 - - - 7,044 TIB40
- - - - - - - 454
- 15,000 - aTE . - 15,378 48089
7,078 BED - | E P 7848 5202 |
24,525 15,060 = EiL] v z 40,488 31585
437150 S4B2TT  TEAOGD 16,505 1395824 51265 2808288  o0E407
= B30a6] 725478 B.800| 1021802 Td0Ra ] 1.028,068 || 1904 J68
76,082 E 5 - - 3 76,082 54018
- 674p| 7a3s2 . 73373 13W| 185780 7503
5 123297 | Haw 161 TRSE 23730| 185283 AEAD4
5TO4 | W00ET 5,087 : BEETZ EO074 | 150824 D4ET4
| 1887 4 S mgu ooty £ 18,811 | 108
64413 204,548 764,007 3760 1,268.453 45103 2,440,334 102244
ZB74E 41728 FrE] T,74E  JaBIa1 BBz AG8,883 355 174

1BE.000 RETHTH]
1IeE ansog
M528 TiHE:
120 T20
25648 15648
18,847 TaREG
243,504 240045
S2E BB EEERED
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46 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS

Name of related parties Relationship
Askari Development & Heldings Private Limited Associated undertaking
AWT Investments Limited [Primus Investment) Associated undertaking
Askari Life Assurance Company Limited Associated undertaking
Askari Ganeral Insurance company Limited Associated undertaking
Askari Siddigsons Development Company Limited Associated undertaking
Aslcan Chartered Services Associated undertaking
Askari Airport Services Associated undertaking
Askari Travels Agencies Assaciated undertaking
Askari Travels and Tours Associated undertaking
Services Travels Associated undertaking
Blue Lagoon Assoclated undertaking
Askari Lagoon Faisalabad Associated undertaking
Askari Fuels Associated undertaking
Army Welfare Sugar Mills Associated undertaking
Askari Woolen Mills Associated undertaking
Askan Shoe Project Associated undertaking
AWT Plaza Rawalpindi Associated undertaking
AWT Plaza Karachi Associated undertaking
RE-Rawalpindi Assaociated undertaking
RE-Lahare Agsociated undertaking
RE-Peshawar Associated undertaking
Army Farms Khosk Associated undertaking
Farms Boyel Gung Associated undertaking
Farms Probynabad Associated undertaking
Farms - RB Associated undertaking
Askari Seeds Associated undertaking
MAL Pakistan Limited Associated undertaking
Askari Securities Limited Associated undertaking
Askari Aviation (Private) Limited Associated undertaking
Askari Guards [Private] Limited Associated undertaking
Askari Enterprises {Private) Limited Associated undertaking
Fauji Securities Services [Private] Limrted Associated undertaking
MedASK [Private) Limited Associated undertaking
Askari Air Pakistan [Private] Limited Associated undertaking
Jolidays Associated undertaking
East West Insurance Company Limited Associated undertaking
Army Welfare Trust Holding compary
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47

TRANSACTIONS AND BALAMCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise of holding Company, essociated companies, staff retirement fund, Directors
and key management persannel The transactions with refated perties are in normal course of business.
Transactions with related partes and remuneration and benefits to key management perscnne! under
the terms of their emplogyment are as folows:

Relationship

Holding company
Haolding company
Holding company
Associated undertaking
Associated undertaking
Associated undertaking
Chief Executive Officer

Hey Management
Personnel

Directors

Related Party
Holding Company
Army Welfare Trust

Army Welfare Trust
Army Welfare Trust
Associated undertakings
Askari Guards Pyt Ltd
Askari Fuels

Askari Woolen Mills
Askari Devalopmant Holding
Pt Limited

AWT Investmeant

Askari Chartered Awviation
Services [ACS]

Fauji Security Services
MEDASK

Real Estate

Blue lzgoon

Army Weifare Sugar Mills
Askari lagoon

Askan Travel & Tours
AWT Housing Scheme Karachi
Asgkar Farms & Seeds
Askar Enterprises

Askar Flying Academy
Askari Shoes

Askari Service Travels

Transactions
Premium ¢ contribution revenue

Advance against equity
Expenses and acquisition cost
Premiurm revenue

Insurance benefits

Expenses and scquisition cost
Premium revenue

Remuneration
Fee

Balances

Due from insurance contract holders
Advance against equity
Accrued Experses

Due from insurance contract holders
Due from insurance contract holders
Due from insurance contract holders

Due from insurance contract holders
Due from insurance contract holders

Due from insurance contract holders
[ue from insurance contract holders
Due from insurance contract holders
Due frorm insurance contract holders
Due from insurance contract holders
Due from insurance contract holders
Due from insurance contract holders
Due from insurance contract bolders
Due from insurance contract holders
Due from insurance contract holders
Due from insurance contract holders
Due from insurance contract holders
Due from insurance contract holders
Due from insurance contract holders

2024 2023
----- (Rupees in '000) ==--

1‘454 ma?;

= 100,000 200,000
263 915
= 44054 = 61967
20,560 63,248
1,608 718
S0 S0
149,466 116,366
875 1070
1,696 242
730,000 &30.000
1 1
983 5.227
571 M
291 "
485 281
37 25
88 2
1,029 4
68 92
1,090 54
364 =
1,949 3
28 28
122 6
2 2
180 E
197 B
91 -
393 z
i =
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Askari General Insurance

Due to insurance contract holders -

G658

Company Limited

fa'lr:'_l';rlguumng R Due to insurance contract holders 1 1
Askari Woolen Mills Due to insurance contract holders - 1
Blue lagoon Due to insurance contract holders - 6
Askari Shoes Due ta Insurance contract holders - 1
Agkar Farms & Seeds Due to insurance contract holders - 27
Askan Guards Limited Outstanding claims 1.937 16.528
Fauji Security Services Outstanding claime 100 4,800
Army Welfare Sugar Mills Outstanding claims 4,800 50
Blue lagoon Outstanding claims 600 3.600
Askari Fuel Outstanding claims - - 25
Askari General Insurance Outstanding claims

Company Limited 64 -
Askan Travel & Taurs Accrued expenses 187 187
Askar General Insurance Accrued expenses

Company Limited - 180
Advanca to Staff Chief Operating Officer 583 -
Graturty payable to staff Staff retirement benefits 76,982 54078
AWT Investment Mutual Funds 896,913 -
East West Insurance

Company Limited Equity investments 624 454

48 GEMNERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousands.
45 CORRESPONDING FIGURE

Carresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified wherever necessary. However, there
were mo significant reclassifications to report

=0 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

2024 2023
The details of number of employees are as follows:
Mumber of employees as at year end 102 a7
Awvarage Number of employees dunng the year 100 80

a1 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on
March 20, 2025,

JjV

Chief Executive Officer

o ot

Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS UNDER INSURANCE ORDINANCE 2000
(As per the requirement o< section 46(6) and section 52(2)

of the Insurance Ordinance 2000)
Section 46(6)

* In our opinion the annual statutory accounts of the Company set out in the
forms attached to the statement have been drawn up in accordance with the
Ordinance and any rule made there under;

The Company has at all times in the year complied with the provision with
the Ordinance and the rules made there under relating to paid-up capital,
solvency and reinsurance arrangements; and

As at December 31, 2024 the Company continues to be in compliance with
the provisions of the Ordinance and the rules made there under relating to
paid-up capital, solvency and reinsurance arrangements.

Section 52(2)

» In our opinion the statutory fund of the Company complies with the solvency
requirements of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000.

Chief Exetutive irector lre;J hairman
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Akhtar & Hasan (Pvt) Lid

Actuaries

3 Floor (Annexe), State Life No 1 Building, Chundrigar Road, Karachi 7441, Pakistan
Phone  (021) 111-I40-00E-53 Fax (121] 3241-THIN E-Mail actaaricsi@akhasancom

24" February 2025

Statement by the Appoinied Actuary

Reguired under Section 52(2) (a) and (b) of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000

L, Faisal Zai, of Akhtar & Hasan (Private) Limited, being an Actuary duly qualified under the terms of
the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, and beng the Appomnted Actuary of Askan Life Assurance Company
Limited, do hereby state that in my opinion;

fa} The policyholders’ linbilities included in the balance sheet of Askari Life Assurance
Company Limited as at 31 December 2024 have been determined in accordance with the

provisions of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, and

{(b)  The SECP via letter dated 10th February 2014 (Ref: IDISUPEWL/REET) imdally granted
permission to Askari Lifc Assurance Company Limited to maintain solvency margin in
aggregate for a period of ten vears till 9th February 2024, This permission was subsequently
extended by the SECP, via lemter dated 13" November 2024 (Ref ID/PRDD/046-
RA2024/3357), allowing the company o maintain solvency margin in Sharcholders’ Fund
on an aggregate basis for a period of 5 years, effective from 10" February 2024 unul 9
February 2029, Pursuant to this, the Sharcholders’ Fund and the Statutory Funds of the
Company meet the solvency requirements of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 as at 31*

December 2024 on an ageregate basis,

o B

Faizal Zai, M5c, F1A C Act, FPSA
Appointed Actuary

“Astisarice weadse pirnetad poe s e fazire”
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Pattern of Shareholding as at December 37, 2024

Sha:lT\:Ifdnrs From To Total Shares hold ~ Percentage
T 1 100 2883 0.00%
126 i 500 53,254 0.04%
57 501 1000 51654 D.03%
131 o0 SO0 353748 0.24%
42 SO0 10000 330.035 0.22%
15 0007 15000 188 EG3 0.13%
2 150017 20000 163,192 11%
10 20001 25000 =34 551 0.16%
3 250017 30000 85,000 0.0E%

2 30007 25000 E1.000 0.04%
4 A5001 40000 153851 0.10%
7 40007 A5000 43500 0.03%
3 45007 50000 4E.0DD 00%
3 S0001 55000 167428 0113
A 55001 SO000 233018 015%
B 65007 F0000 58,002 0.05%
2 7501 80000 153056 0.10%
1 80001 25000 B3 G647 0.06%
L BR001 900040 86500 0.0B%
4 95007 00000 295,000 0.26%
1 JOR0 TISOO00 100,590 0.07%
& 12500 120000 510,425 0,34%
g 13000 135000 133,421 0.09%
1 135001 140000 38,000 0.05%
1 145001 150000 1474599 0.10%
1 1E5001 10000 e87,.500 (7 T%
1 175001 AB000D0 175619 012%
b 185001 120000 187430 0.12%
i 200001 205000 202,005 0.13%
1 20500 210000 208,000 0.14%
0 220007 230000 226 466 0.15%
] 260001 265000 264,976 0183
4 255001 200000 1,200,000 0.80%
1 3B50M 3520000 380,000 0.26%
i A00DC0T 405000 4071077 027%
1 405001 410000 405152 027%
1 455001 4E0000 457403 0.30%
1 555001 BOOO00 386,217 Ca0%
i) ES000] 655000 652,261 0.43%
L 555001 BEO000 656,056 0.4:4%
i 500 FAQD00 736,465 0A5%
5 TS5001 Te0000 ?59,345 057%
1 255001 S00000 298,000 [.E0%
i S05001 10000 907,500 0.60%
1 1110001 1115000 113753 0.74%
g M50 1220000 1,218,056 0.81%
4 1345001 350000 1,345,000 0.50%
1 1395001 1400000 1385268 0.93%
1 1850001 TEES000 862,081 1T
7 5455001 5450000 5457500 363%
1 720001 10725000 10,720,500 7.145%
1 13600001 12605000 13,600,324 5.06%
T 00080001 | T0C0R5000 TO0083,003 B585%
573 150,172,074 100%
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Mo of Shareholders

S.Mo. Mame of the Director g H':‘ af Shares held Percentage
i 3 10,2271 QODEEY
2 - - 0.0000%
3 Aseociated Companies, Lindertakings & related parties 3 128861327 BEA757%
4 NIT and ICP B 0.0000%.
5 Puiic Sector Comganies & Corparations - - 0.0000%
=] (thers 0 2581543 1971971%
Banks, Development Finance Insitutions, Mon-Banking
7 Fingnes Institution, Insurers, Modaraba & Mutual funds 1 o OO
8 Individuals 553 174717523 T15354%
Total 570 150,172,014 100%
Categories of Shareholdes
CEQ, Directors and their spouses and minaor childrens 3 10,221  0D.0DE8%
1 Jehanzeb Zafar - CEO 3407 0.CD23%
2 Auasha Rafique - Director 3407 O023%
3 Tarig Hamead - Director 3407 (O023%
Executive o | - | opoooo%]
Associated Companies, Undertakings & related parties and Shareholders
holding five percent or 3 129,861,327 BE.4751%
1 East West Insurence Coltd 12,600,324 50565%
East West Hoiding Company Ltd 16,178,000 10.7730%
2 Arrny \Welfare Trost 100083003 | 6B66456%
Banks, Development Finance Insitutions, Mon-Banking Finance Institution, 1
Insurers, Modaraba & Mutual funds 1,000 0.0007%
Others 10 | 2,851,943 | 1.9191%|
Individuals 553 | 7417523  11.5984%]
Total 570 150,172,014 100%

{111} Askari Life Assurance Co. Ltd.




NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Motice is hereby given that 32nd Annual General Meeting of the sharehclders of Askan Life Assurance Company
Limited {the Company) will be held inBlue [ agnon Restaurant, Off The Mall, Masud 2khtar Kianl Road Saddar,
Rawalpingi, cn Monday, April 28, 2025 at 1:30 PM.

The sharehclders whose niame appear on the Books of the Company by close of Business an 2pril 27, 2025
will be treatad 'in time' for the purpose of attending the meeting and who are interested to attend AGM through
onlire platform are requested to get themselves registered at the Cumpans Secretary's office through provision

of the following Information at the earllest but not later than

4 hours before the meeting at

company secretary@askariifecom

Mame of Shareholder CHIC No. Folio Number/CDC Mumber Mabile Number Emiail Address

Upon receipt of the aforementioned infarmaton from the interested shareholders, the company will send the
login details at their email address. The login facility will be cpened 30 minutes before the meeting time at 1.00
P on Monday Aprit 28, 2025 to facilitate the partcipants' idertification and verification process before joining
the meeting at 1.30 PM

The meetng will be convened to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. Toconfirm the minutes of 31st Annual general meeting held on April 24, 2024,

2. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Company's Firancial Statements for the year ended December 37 2024,
together with the Reports of the Auditors and Directors thereon
The annual repart is avaiisble through the following OR Code and Weblink:

https:/askarilife.com/financial-statermenits ?iang=

3. Toappoint M/S BDO Ebrahim & Co - Chartered Accountants es Statutory Auditors end Shanah Auditors
af the Company and to fx their remuneration for the financial year December 37 20235,

4. Totransact any other business that may be placed before meeting with the permission of the Chairman

By Order of the Board

Date; April 7, 2025 Muhammad Nadeem Rajput

Company Secretany

NOTES:

[2) In accordance with section 223 of the companies Act, 2077 and pursuant to SECP's SRO 389(1)/2023 the
Company has obtained sharehalders' approval inthe 31st 2nnual General Meeting of the Company held on
April 24, 2024 for the transmission of annual audited financial statements through OF enable code and
wieblirk,

[6] The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain ciosed frompril 22, 2025to 8pril 28, 2025(both days
inciusive) Transfers received in order by our registrar, M/s THX Associates (Pvt) Limited Plot No 32-C. Jami
Commercial Street 2, DHA, Phase VI, Karachi, at the close of business on April 21, 2025wl be treated in
time for the purpose of attending the mestngt

[c] A member eligible to attend and vote at the meeting may appaint anather person as his/her proxy to attend,

speak and vaote instead of him/her Proxies in order 1o be effective must be received In the office of the
Company's Head Dffice at Emerald Tower, Office No 1104, 11th Floor, Plot G-19, Block 5, KDA improvemerit
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Scheme No. 5, Clifton, Karachi, not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meetingand must be
duly stamped, signed and witnessed. & member shall not be entitled to appoint mare than one proxy.

|d} COC account/sub account holders should provide their original Computerized National Identity Cards [CNIC),
Accounts; Sub-Account Number and Participant's (D Number in the Central Depastary Company (COC) for
idenufication purpose when attending the meetng. In case of 8 corporate entity, the Board of Directors'
resolution ‘power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (Lnless it has been
provided earlier] at the time of the meeting.

le] Shareholders [Non-CLC) are requested to promptly notify the Company's Share Registrar of any change
in their addresses and also provide the email address, if possible.

FOR APPOINTING PROXIES:

* In case of individuals, the submission of the proxy form as per the requirement notified in Note
(cimertioned above

* The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose name, addresses and CNIC numbers shall
be menticned on the form

* Attested copies of CNIC or the passpaort of the beneficial owner and the proxy shall be furnisheo
with the proxy form.

* The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original Passport at the tme of meeting.
In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution /power:of attormey with specimen
signature shall be submitted [unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form t the
Company.

[f] Special nutes to the shareholders

Conversion of physical shares into COC account: The SECP, through its letter No. CSD/ED/Misc 20716~
639-640 dated March 26, 2021, has advised all listed companies to adhere to the provisions of
Section 72 of the Companies 2ct, 207/, which requires all companies 1o replace shares issued in
phuysical form te baok-entry form within four years of the promulgation of the 4ct &ccordingly, all
sharehoiders of the Company having physical fy lios,share certficates are requested to convert their
shares from the physical form into bock-entry form at the earliest. Shareholders may contact a PSX
Member, COC Participant, ar COC Investor &ccount Service Provider for assistance in openiing a CDS
Apcount and subsequent conversian of the phusical shares into book-entry form, Maintaining shares
in book-entry form has many advamages - safe custody of shares with the CUOC, aveidance of
formalities reguired for the issuance of duplicate shares, and trade in shares anytme etc The
shareholders of the Company may contact the Share Registrar THX Asscciates for the conversion
of physical shares intc boak entry form

Conduct of shareholdars in the mesting: The sharehclders shall observe following conduct in general
mestings in terms of section 2715 of the Companies et 2077 [) shall nat bring s.ch materal that
may cause threat to participants or premises where meeting s being held; (il shall confine themselves
to the agenda items covered in the notice of meeting Lil) shall keep comments and discussion
"estricted to the affaires of the company: and (iv) shall not conduct in 2 manner to disclose any
politcal affiliation.

For any query/information, members may cantact the Share Registrar at the following address:

THK Associates [Pvt] Ltd Askari life Assurance Company Limited

Plot Mo, 32-C, Emeraid Tower Cffice Mo, 1104, Tih Floor Plot G139,
Jami Commercial Street 2, Block 5, KDA Improvement Scheme No. 5, Clifton, karachi
CHA, Prhase Vi, Karachi Telephone Mo 021<111-225-275

021-111-000-322 Contact Person: Company Secretary

Email: companysecretary@askarilifecom
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Head Office & Regional Offices

Head Office - Karachi

Office No 1104 11th Floor, Emerald Tower Plot
Mo G718, Block 5, KDA Improvemerit Scheme
M5, Clifton, Karachi Pakistan

Telephone: (021 171-225-275,

Fax: (92-21) 35147540

Email: company secretary@askarilifecom

Registered Office:

Bth Fioor, Army Welfare Trust, AWT Plaza,
The Mall, Rawalpindi, Pakistan

Email: info@askariife com

Karachi Office

Cffice No. 103 & 104, Marine Paint,
Mezzarineg Floor, Plot Survey No. CC-7,
Block No 8, Scheme No. 5, Clifton, Karachi

Lahore Regional

Development Center
Plot # 524 Binck-15, Sactor B-1,
Quaid-e-Azam Town Scheme,
College Road, Lanore, Pakistan.
Email: rde lahore@askariife com

Karachi Regional

Development Center
Showrnom number 05 & 06 Ground Flaor
Zubaida's Garden, Plot # 1 Survey na. 34,
Survey Sheet no. 35-F1 Block 7 &8
kathiawar Caoperative Housing Society,
karachi, Pakistan

Email rdekarach @askarilifecom

Rawalpindi Office
Building # D-10, 6th Road,

Mear Total Petral Pumg. Satelite Town,
Rawalpindi.

Email: rdz islamabad@askariifecom

‘st Floor, AWT Plaza building,
The Mall Road, Rawalpindi

Contact No:
AN : 021-11 -225- 275
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PROXY FORM
Askari Life Assurance Company Limited

1 S/o resident of
(full address) being member of Askari Life

Asgurance Company  Limited  hereby  appoint s/0
resident of (full

address) as my proxy to vote on my behalf at the 32™Annual General Meecting of the Company
to be held on Monday,April 28, 2025 at 1:30 PMinBlue Lagoon Restaurant, Off The Mall,
Masud Akhtar Kiani Road Saddar, Rawalpindi, Rawalpindi and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this dav ol 2025,
Please affix Revenue Stamp
Revenue
Stamp
Signature of the Member
Signed in the presence of’
Witnesses
Signature of Witness No. 1 Signature of Witness No. 2
Name: Name:
CNIC No: CNIC No:
Note:
I. A person appointed as proxy shall be entitled to attend, speak and vote on behalf of
appointer.

2. Attested copies of CNIC/Passport shall be provided with the proxy form.

3. A person may be appointed proxy even though he/she is not member of the company.

4. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in wriling under the hand of the appointer or
of his attorney duly authorized in writing or if such appoinler is a corporation under its
seal or the hand of its attorney,

5. The instrument appointing a proxy and the power-ol-atiorney or other authority (if any)
under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy of that power or authority, shall be
deposited with the Company’s Head Office at Emerald Tower, Office No 1104, 11th
Floor, Plot G-19, Block 5, KDA Improvement Scheme No. 5, Clifton, Karachi.not less
than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding the meeting.

6. The proxy shall produce his original CNIC/Passportat the time of the meeting.
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Askari Life Assurance Co. Ltd.
Emerald Tower, Ofhce No. 1104, 171th Floar, Plot G-15,
Blook 5, KDA Improvement Scheme Mo, 5 Clhiftan Karachi
Tel 021 36269947544 | Fax: 0213514 7540
LIAN 021-111-225-275 | Emal info(@askariifecorn

@ 029-111-225-275 @ whwi gskianlife com



